5 Herefordshire
Council

AGENDA

Adult Social Care and
Strategic Housing Scrutiny
Committee

Date: Monday 13 December 2010

Time: 9.30 am

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road,
Hereford

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01432 383690
Email: dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in
another format or language, please call David Penrose, Democratic
Services Officer on 01432 383690 or e-mail
dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting.



Agenda for the Meeting of the Adult Social Care
and Strategic Housing Scrutiny Committee

Membership

Chairman Councillor PA Andrews
Vice-Chairman Councillor AE Gray

Councillor ME Cooper
Councillor H Davies
Councillor BA Durkin
Councillor MJ Fishley
Councillor KS Guthrie
Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes
Councillor JE Pemberton
Councillor GA Powell
Councillor RV Stockton

Non Voting Mr R Kelly (Voluntary Sector)

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

The Council’'s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s)
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial. Councillors have to decide
first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion. They will then have to
decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial.

A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council. Councillors
will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation that they
or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area. If they do have a personal
interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor. What Councillors have
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public — if he or she knew all the facts — would think
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it. If a Councillor
has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is. A Councillor who has declared a
prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, but only in
circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak. In such
circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting and on
the same terms. However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these circumstances must
leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken.



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

1.

10.

1.

12.

13.

AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive apologies for absence.
NAMED SUBSTITUTES

To receive details of any Member nominated to attend the meeting in place
of a Member of the Committee.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on
the Agenda.

MINUTES

To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 September
2010.

SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR
FUTURE SCRUTINY

To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the
Committee could scrutinise in the future.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2010/11

To advise the Committee of the financial position for Adult Social Care and
Strategic Housing revenue budgets for the period to 30™ September 2010.
The report lists the variations against budget at this stage in the year and a
projected outturn for the year.

HEREFORDSHIRE 2010 JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT
(JSNA)

To draw the Committee’s attention to aspects of the 2010 JSNA.
AUDIT COMMISSION INSPECTION REPORT
To receive a report on the Audit Commission Inspection report.

REVIEW OF THE EXECUTIVE'S RESPONSE TO THE SCRUTINY REVIEW
OF HOME CARE SERVICES

To provide an update and timetable for the Executive response to the recent
Scrutiny Review of Home Care in Herefordshire.

ADULT SOCIAL CARE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2010/11

To provide an updated report on progress in achieving national
performance indicator targets and other local performance indicators in
Adult Social Care within the Integrated Commissioning Directorate.

STRATEGIC HOUSING SERVICE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2009/10

To report on the national performance indicator positions within the Strategic
Housing Service within the Sustainable Communities Directorate.

ACTION PLAN MONITORING: THE SCRUTINY REVIEW OF THE
SUPPORT TO CARERS IN HEREFORDSHIRE
To inform the Committee of progress in implementing the Action Plans
arising from the Scrutiny Review of the Support to Carers in Herefordshire.
COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme.

13 DECEMBER 2010

Pages

23-34

35-76

77-78

79 - 88

89 - 94

95 -104

105 - 108






PUBLIC INFORMATION
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care
and Strategic Housing, Childrens’ Services, Community Services,
Environment, and Health. A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises
corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees.

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and
transparency of the Council's decision making process.

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to
e Help in developing Council policy

e Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions
before and after decisions are taken

e Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised
by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public

e "call in" decisions - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny
Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further
scrutiny.

e Review performance of the Council

e Conduct Best Value reviews

¢ Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public

Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information

on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out
overleaf



PUBLIC INFORMATION

Public Involvement at Community Services Scrutiny Committee
Meetings

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny
Committees to investigate.

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at
Herefordshire Council’'s Scrutiny Committee meetings.

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if
they have any issues which they would like the Community Services
Scrutiny Committee to investigate, however, there will be no discussion of
the issue at the time when the matter is raised. Councillors will research
the issue and consider whether it should form part of the Committee’s work
programme when compared with other competing priorities.

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within
their specific remit (see below). If a matter is raised which falls within the
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item
listed on the agenda. If you have a question you would like to ask then
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to
the Committee Officer. This will help to ensure that an answer can be
provided at the meeting. Contact details for the Committee Officer can be
found on the front page of this agenda.

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the
discussion at the meeting. This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.)



Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing

Statutory functions for adult social services including:
Learning Disabilities

Strategic Housing

Supporting People

Public Health

Children’s Services

Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including
education, health and social care.

Community Services Scrutiny Committee

Libraries

Cultural Services including heritage and tourism
Leisure Services

Parks and Countryside

Community Safety

Economic Development

Youth Services

Health

Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area
Health Improvement
Services provided by the NHS

Environment

Environmental Issues
Highways and Transportation

Strategic Monitoring Committee
Corporate Strategy and Finance
Resources

Corporate and Customer Services
Human Resources



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at
Meetings

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: -

e Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

e Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the
meeting.

¢ Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to
six years following a meeting.

¢ Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up
to four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of the background papers to a
report is given at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available
to the public.

e Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and
Sub-Committees.

e Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

e Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access,
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage).

e Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy
documents.



Please Note:

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large
print. Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal
with your request.

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available.

A public telephone is available in the reception area.

Public Transport Links

e Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs
approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper bus station at the Tesco store in
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street /
Edgar Street).

e The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction
with Hafod Road. The return journey can be made from the same bus stop.

If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above,
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road,
Hereford.

inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the

@ Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-
<9 Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label.




COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring
continuously.

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the
nearest available fire exit.

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located at
the southern entrance to the circular car park. A check will be
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have
vacated the building following which further instructions will be
given.

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of
the exits.

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning
to collect coats or other personal belongings.



AGENDA ITEM 4

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of Adult Social Care and Strategic
Housing Scrutiny Committee held at The Council Chamber,

Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford on Friday 24 September
2010 at 9.30 am

Present: Councillor PA Andrews (Chairman)
Councillor AE Gray (Vice Chairman)

Councillors: BA Durkin, MJ Fishley, KS Guthrie, MD Lloyd-Hayes,
JE Pemberton, GA Powell and RV Stockton

In attendance: Councillors LO Barnett, WLS Bowen, PJ Edwards and Mr R Kelly (Voluntary
Sector Representative)

24. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillors M E Cooper and H Davies.
25. NAMED SUBSTITUTES

There were no named substitutes.
26. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor AE Gray declared a personal interest as a provider of provisions for people with
learning disabilities.

27. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2010 be confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

28. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE
SCRUTINY

There were no suggestions from members of the public.
29. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2010/11

The Committee received a report on the financial position for Adult Social Care and Strategic
Housing revenue budgets for the period to 31 July 2010.

The Principal Accountant reported that the outturn position for Adult Social Care had
benefited from the injection of £2.2m of contingencies and reserves from the central budget.
This additional funding was shown as a reduction in spend. Within the budget, it represented
a recurrent addition of £1.7m. The budget had not yet been fully allocated as the compliance
process associated with the virements had yet to be finalised.

There remained a budget deficit of £2.2m which needed to be recovered by 31% March 2011.
The outturn position already included a number of measures within the recovery plan and
further work was required in order to achieve a balanced budget.




She went on to say that there were additional pressures within Home Care and Respite
Care. As a result, the Charging Group had met and was looking at ways of maximising
the amount of money to be charged for services in order to be able to be in a position to
recover all costs. A paper outlining the proposals would be brought to the Committee at
its next meeting.

The Principal Accountant went on to say that there had been amore effective use of
contract voids with a reduction from the position reported in July. As a result, savings of
£13k had been made over the two month period to September. Work was also being
undertaken on out of County placements, and the Council had been successful in its
appeal to the Home Secretary regarding a placement in North East Somerset for which
that Authority had not accepted its responsibilities. It had assumed that the Council
would be able to backdate and recover three years of costs for a client with physical
disabilities who now resided in North East Somerset. It was ruled, however, that the
claim could be backdated for five years, providing the Council with an additional £63k.

In reply to a question, the Acting Director of Adult Social Care said that local authorities
were subject to ‘Ordinary residence’ regulations whereby if a service user placed in
residential care in another (host) authority chose to become a resident (living in their own
accommodation) in that other host authority the host authority were liable for their care
package. This had not been honoured by North East Somerset, and the Council had
been forced to go through the Local Government Ombudsman to the Secretary of State
in order to sort recompense. The Council did not aggressively pursue ‘ordinary
residence’ in its own region as there were more people placed in the County from
authorities in the West Midlands who had opted to move from Homes into the
community, than people from Herefordshire placed into other local authorities..

The Principal Accountant went on to say that, when staff had been transferred to Shaw
Healthcare, the Council were responsible for additional payments for job evaluations.
The payment would change as a result of staff turnover, and the Council only had a
responsibility for those who continue on their existing terms and conditions. It was
anticipated that the commitment for the year would be reduced once this process had
been completed. The Accountancy team were working with Shaw Healthcare but were
still awaiting essential payroll information.

She went on to say that further models of recovery within the service were being worked
on. These included the tightening up of procedures, changes in service delivery and
disinvestment options.

In the ensuing discussion, the following points were made:

That the disinvestment in Meals on Wheels mentioned in the report was in regard
to a particular project, and the service would continue to be delivered in this area,
but in a different way.

That whilst any additional care packages would reduce the value of savings made
in the budget, it was important that this should be mitigated against by investment
into reablement services by the Joint Commissioning Team.

That detailed modelling had been undertaken in order to understand how the costs
built up in the Learning Disabilities care market. There had been an increase in
those taking up personalised budgets, and an overall decrease in those in
residential care. The vast majority of those with moderate needs had found
alternative accommodation. There was an increased number of people with
complex needs coming into the system, and these packages could cost up to £3k a
week. There was an increase in the general level of need, as there were more



30.

people reaching adulthood with profound disabilities. It also had to be borne in
mind that as those with disabilities aged, their needs became more complex.

The Acting Director said that the entire Social Care Service had been analysed for
any further possible savings. Areas that had been looked at included eligibility
criteria, reablement care, and contract review to ensure that the correct care was
being provided to the service user. Even with these initiatives, it was unclear as to
how the overspend could be reduced.

That the day care voids in the Shaw Healthcare contract currently stood at around
40-50%. There was no mechanism within it which allowed for termination of the
thirty year contract except by poor performance on the part of Shaw Healthcare.
There was also no onus on Shaw Healthcare to close the gaps on the voids. The
initial contract had been set up as a property rather than a service contract.
Negotiations were in hand in order to change the nature of the service to one that
would be used by service users who increasingly would have personalised budgets

The Cabinet Member (Adult Social Care, Health and Wellbeing), added that she
had spent the last four years trying to resolve this issue, and the matter was being
handled by the Legal Department.

The Cabinet Member went on to say that whilst the integration of services between
Health and Social Care was progressing, it was clear that IT linked to this area
would not be inexpensive, and that the outlay would continue to be significant. It
would be necessary to go over all decisions pertaining to IT in order to ensure that
it functioned correctly at the different locales across the County.

In reply to a question, the Acting Director said that the Council was planning for a
cut in budgets of 25% for the coming year, and a reduction to Social Care of £6m
over the next four years. All possible avenues had been considered, and the only
solution available for dealing with this was likely to be service cuts and staff
redundancies

RESOLVED
That:

a) The Committee noted the efforts that were being made by the Service to
stay within budget, but it was considered that the basic budget for this
demand led service remained inadequate and it was unlikely that the deficit
would be reduced significantly by the end of the financial year; and;

b) The Committee noted with dismay and disappointment the length of time
that discussions with Shaw Healthcare had taken; and;

c) areas of concern continue to be monitored.
SCRUTINY REVIEW OF HOME CARE IN HEREFORDSHIRE

The Committee noted the findings arising from the Scrutiny Review of Home Care in
Herefordshire.

The Vice Chairman thanked the Service Redesign Officer for providing her expertise,
which had made the undertaking of the Review much easier. Care providers and carers
had been interviewed, and both groups had been open in their concerns. In the ensuing
discussion, the following points were raised:



31.

e As a result of changes to the Supporting People funding, it was unlikely that
services would be provided for people with low level needs in the future, and
alternative ways of providing basic home care services such as shopping were
being considered. Discussions were in hand with alternative providers, in
conjunction with supermarkets.

e That there was a Providers Forum that allowed Care providers to provide feedback
to the Council. There was a good relationship with providers.

e That the savings from the Electronic Monitoring System were based on those
reported by other Councils, and were on the conservative side.

e That the new Integrated Intermediate Care Team would be staffed by PCT
therapists and those currently employed on the social care reablement team
(STARRS). Where this service was called upon by other health care professionals
such as GP’s, costs would be covered by Section 75 Agreements.

RESOLVED:
That:

a) the report of the Home Carer Scrutiny Review Group, in particular it
recommendations, should be approved and be submitted to Cabinet.

b) subject to the Review being approved, the Executive’s response to the
Review including an action plan be reported to the first available meeting of
the Committee after the Executive had approved its response; and

c) a further report on progress in response to the Review be made after six
months with consideration then being given to the need for any further
reports to be made.

PROCUREMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES - UPDATE

The Committee received a report on the progress of the Mental Health Procurement
Project.

The Acting Director of Adult Social Care reported that the Interim Director if Joint
Commissioning would undertake the leadership of this project. There was a competitive
dialogue process in hand which was very labour intensive. It did mean, however, that
the Council would secure a compatible partner as a result. The process had produced a
productive exchange of ideas as the bidders had been encouraged to develop detailed
solutions to issues.

There was no intention to TUPE the existing mental health service staff into the employ
of the new bidder. They would be seconded, however, and their positions reviewed after
a year. There were two bidders left in the process as two of the other ones had dropped
out in the previous six month.

The Council and PCT were currently in the final round of dialogue with the bidders, and it
was expected that there would be a decision at the PCT Board meeting in December.
staff would require 90 days notice of the changes, but she was optimistic that the new
service would be in place for the deadline of 1 April 2011. There were contingency plans
in place should they be required.

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the progress and risks associated with the
Mental Health Procurement Project.



32. ADULT SOCIAL CARE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2010/11

The Committee received a report on the progress toward the achievement of national
performance indicator targets and other local performance indicators for Adult Social
Care within the Joint Commissioning Directorate.

The Acting Director of Adult Social Care reported that the Council was not performing
well on NI 130 (Social Care clients receiving Self Directed Support), which was largely
as a result of the lack of a finance system compatible with the Frameworki IT system.
The Service might consider offering banded budgets, rather than detailed allocations as
a contingency measure until the IT support was available. In reply to a question, she
concurred that the Council was also dependant on the Service User group: some were
keen to take up personalised budgets, whilst other, usually older users, were less
interested in employing people. Advice from the Care Quality Commission was that the
Council should offer an advocacy and brokerage system for older users. This would
result in a significant increase in cost.

The Acting Director went on to say that there had been a slight dip in performance of NI
132 (timeliness of social care assessments) in the last month. This was as a result of
the success of the Safeguarding Team in raising awareness and generating cases, but
could not be counted as part of this indicator.

In the ensuing discussion the Acting Director said that it was her understanding that the
finance module associated with Frameworki would be installed on 4 October, and that
once this was in place, it would be possible to start populating the model in order to
make it work. Commitment accounting was an important provision for the Service, and
it would not be possible to bring an EMS system into operation without it.

RESOLVED

That

(a) progress in managing performance towards achieving targets be noted;
and;

(b) areas of concern continue to be monitored.
33. HOMES AND COMMUNITIES PERFORMANCE OUT- TURN TO JUNE 2010

The Committee received a report on the progress toward the achievement of national
performance indicator targets and other local performance indicators for Homes and
Communities within the Sustainable Communities Directorate, and to consider
subsequent plans to improve performance in 2010/11.

RESOLVED
That:
a) the report be noted; and;

b) areas of concern should continue to be monitored.

34. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
The Committee noted its Work Programme.

RESOLVED: That the work programme be approved and reported to the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.

The meeting ended at 11.30 am CHAIRMAN






AGENDA ITEM 6

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND STRATEGIC HOUSING
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 6" DECEMEBER 2010

TITLE OF REPORT: | REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2010/11

PORTFOLIO AREA: | ADULT SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING

CLASSIFICATION: Open

Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

1 To advise the Committee of the financial position for Adult Social Care and Strategic
Housing revenue budgets for the period to 30" September 2010. The report lists the
variations against budget at this stage in the year and a projected outturn for the year.

Recommendation(s)

THAT
(a) the report be noted;
and;

(b) Ensure that the delivery of the recovery plan to mitigate the level of
overspend takes place.

Reasons for Recommendations

2 To enable the Committee to carry out its function in relation to the Adult Social Care and
Strategic Housing revenue budget for 2010/11.

3 A detailed Budget Monitoring Report to 30" September 2010 is attached at Appendix 1 for
Members’ consideration.

4 The Adult Social Care budget sits within the Integrated Commissioning Directorate whilst
the Strategic Housing budget sits within the Sustainable Communities Directorate.

5 The summary position is set out in the table below, and provides the current view of
forecast outturn which was predicted throughout the year. The forecast outturn for
September is predicting a £3.81m overspend for Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing
to come in on budget.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Sam Powles, Principal Accountant (Tel: 01432 260545)

7



Annual Budget Sept 10 Net Forecast

£000 (Over)/Under spend £000
Older People 13,190 (2,016)
Learning Disabilities 11,612 (1,607)
Physical Disabilities / Sensory
Impairment 3,896 (1,293)
Mental Health 7,407 (917)
Section 75 Arrangements 936 (69)
Adults (160) 2,093
Commissioning Directorate 1,620 0
Other Services 2,032 (5)
Supporting People 0 0
Total as per finance ledger 40,533 (3,814)
Anticipated Budget
Allocation (ABG) 2,864 0
Total 43,397 (3,814)

Note: Other Services include Public Contact, Provider Services, Intermediate Care Needs Analysis and Transport.

Adult Social Care

6.

8.

The September forecast is a net overspend of £3.81m. This is based on existing
commitments projected forward in combination with a realistic forecast of the recovery
measures of £2.008m (see Appendix 3). During August virements from corporate were
undertaken, £200k was transferred for safeguarding, which is included in the ‘Other
Services’ area above and £2.019m budget was transferred which is included in the ‘Adults’
section in the above table. This will be allocated to the service areas.

The new standard rate for residential care has now been implemented. The payments to
providers have been backdated to the 1° April 2010. This resulted in a further in year cost
pressure of circa £500k. which was to be funded by the reduction of voids and use of
contract inflation built into the budget setting.

Changes since the last report.

There has been an increase from July’s projection by £1.554m, this is due to:

Older People increase of (£11k):

¢ Increase in Domiciliary care packages approved (£113k),
¢ Increase in the number of residential (8) and nursing care packages (4) costing (£103k),

e Staffing costs have increased due to agency staff employed to cover vacancies (£17k)
over and above the vacancy budgets,

e Savings in Personal Budgets, no new packages have been taken up, resulting in a
saving of £222k

Learning Disabilities increase of (£325k):

¢ Increase in Domiciliary care hours approved above those included in the budget (£318k),

e There has been 1 residential package approved not originally included in the budget.
This was a high value transition service user (£74k),



e 7 new Personal Budgets have been approved above budget (£102k)

¢ There have been savings in the block contracts £122k. As homes deregister, clients are
reassessed and their contributions have increased,

e Savings in contracts placed with voluntary organisations £47k due to contracts ending.

Physical Disabilities increase of (£323k):

¢ Increase in Domiciliary care packages (£303k),

¢ Increase in the approval of Carer’s breaks (£45k)

¢ Increase in 1 direct payment after a review of a client (£12k)

¢ Increase in the standard rates for residential & nursing care homes (£14k)

e There is a saving of 1 package in supported accommodation £19k. The non take up of a
head injuries place has saved £24k. Personal Budgets have been less than originally
included in the budget, thus saving £8k

Mental Health increase of (£845k):

¢ Increase in Domiciliary care packages (£314k). This includes some expensive intensive
care packages with ‘action4housing’. These will be reviewed on a regular basis.

¢ Increase in the number of residential and nursing care packages has not reduced by the
number anticipated in the budget, thus overspend anticipated (£121k). At the start of the
year there were 209 packages, anticipated to fall to 186 by the end of September. The
actual number has fallen to 202, 16 clients above budget. Part year backdated packages
totalled (£46k)

¢ Increase in the standard rates for residential and nursing care homes (£327k)
e There has been an increase in the use of respite (£38k)
o The number of Carer’s breaks provided has increased (£72k)

¢ Personal budgets are 3 below the budget at the end of September, saving £41k, there is
also a £32k saving for 1 drug and alcohol package not utilised.

Section 75 increase of (£9k):

¢ Increase in purchase of equipment for the Community Equipment Store (£9k)

Other (£41k) increase:

e The implementation of the EMS system was included in the recovery plan assuming a
saving this financial year of £120k. Because of the phased set up and implementation,
the savings are more likely to be realised next financial year. Thus the recovery plan was
reduced by (£120k)

e There was an increase in budget from reserves to cover the payment of the Supporting
People OCC maintenance £18k

e Savings have occurred due to the delay in filling the Self Directed Support Officer post,
£26k, and vacant posts within the Intermediate Care Team £35k.

Full Year Projections include:
9. Older People predicted overspend for the year is £2,016k.

e The numbers of residential and nursing care packages are rising over and above the



expected demographic increase of 3% and more expensive packages put in place due to
more complex needs. Last financial year resulted in an over spend of £221k. Year to date
there have been 4 new nursing and 8 new residential packages resulting in a predicted
overspend of £160k.

Domiciliary care was over spent by £1m last financial year and therefore 2010/11 base
budgets were increased to reflect this plus an additional 5% was built in for demographic
increase. The year to date overspend is £161k, which is a result of an increase in
homecare hours delivered by 25% compared to the same period last year. It is anticipated
that these packages will continue resulting in an overall overspend of £391k.

10. Learning Disabilities anticipated to be £1,607k over spend.

The full year anticipated over spend relates to increased costs in:

The use of expensive packages for clients with more complex needs. This was a burden
last financial year and these packages will continue. It is assumed an 8% increase in the
number of clients supported in the 2010/11 budget along with the assumption that there
will be additional transitions packages. There is an, underspend anticipated of £138k due
to the expectation that more clients would move into Supported Accommodation and their
contributions increased. During September there were 2 high value packages approved
costing (£192k) for the rest of the year. The full year projection is now predicting an
overspend of (£54k)

As the Personalisation Programme is more widely known and promoted allowing greater
choice and flexibility to meet care needs, there has been an increase in the number of
new clients choosing to take personal budgets. In 2009/10 the number of clients taking up
personal budgets increased from 36 to 53. The increase built into the assumption for
2010/11 is for a further 15%, increasing the number to 61 packages. The number has
already reached 73, 16 above budget giving an overspend of (£145k). Direct Payments
are predicting £33k underspend. Direct Payment packages are costing less than
anticipated year to date with surpluses being refunded.

Domiciliary Care. Packages have increased year to date. Year on year the number of
hours has increased by 38% to September, therefore the yearly forecast has been
adjusted to reflect this, predicted (£277k) over spend.

There are currently 17 long term carers over the age of 80 supporting Learning Disability
clients and potentially would be unable to care for the clients putting pressure on the
Learning Disability budget. Potential pressure of (£78k) for future years

The impact of the changes in criteria for ILF funding has been built into the projections. It
has been assumed that no new cases will gain funding and no inflation will be applied to
current packages, built into the forecast (£43k)

Supporting People

11. The final outturn for 2009/10 gave an, underspend of £2,672k which has been carried
forward into 2010/11.

12.  For 10/11 the underspend will be allocated as follows:

Pilot Projects £542k
Social Care SLA £500k
Additional Social Care SLA £595k

Shortfall in current commitments £735k

10



13.

This leaves an, underspend of £300k. The Council is reviewing current expenditure to ensure
it maximises funding from Supporting People and it is currently underway.

Integrated Commissioning are met with providers at the Supporting People forum on the 11"
November 2010 and will be working with the providers to assess existing contracts, analyse
impact of any proposed changes in service and develop commissioning intentions from
2011/12. This will be done closely with Transition Board and the Herefordshire Partnership
Working Groups.

Strategic Housing

15.

16.

17.

20.

The 2010/11 Budget for Strategic Housing has increased by £37.5k to £1,846k. This is due
to the receipt of the general contribution from Social Care towards the running costs of the
Handyman Service, which sits within the Private Sector Housing Team. The work
undertaken by this team enables and supports people to remain in their own homes.
Examples of the work undertaken by this team include the fitting of grab rails and showers
and the carrying out of minor repairs and security improvements.

Strategic Housing is projected to spend to budget.

The graph below shows the occupancy of Bed and breakfast at the end of each month in
2008/09, 2009/10 and 2010/11 to date. As can be seen the use of B&B is significantly lower
in the first six months of this financial year compared to the same period in either 2008/09 or
2009/10.

B&B Occupancy

45
40
35

30 \
- —e—2008/09
\ —=—2009/10
— —2010/11

20
15 4

Households

10 A
5 P
/\

O T T T T

Q& @’Z?\ ¥ 5@ RORINC ) & & O &S &
¥ S ?99 & & & &
%Q,Q o %0 O@ > 4

Months

The following table illustrates that the reduction in total B&B numbers which started in the
last half of 2008/09 was sustained through 2009/10 and into the beginning of 2010/11. As
at the end of September 1 family with children and 1 single person were in receipt of bed
and breakfast.

11



Families with children 1 1 1 0 0 1
Other(couples, siblings) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Single 7 1 3 2 2 1
Total 8 2 4 2 2 2

12




Adult Social Care Recovery Plans

21.

Recovery Plans for 2010/11:

Detailed Recovery Plan is included in Appendix 3

22.

23.

Recovery Plan Actions already achieved and within projections include:
Capitalisation of Community Equipment £4k
Surpluses regained from deferred payments £43k

Further measures identified for present and future financial stability include:

Supported Living - A review of costly Learning Disability packages where opportunities exist
to transfer clients into supported living.

Review all expensive out of county placements - Service Managers are currently working
on agreeing clients that may meet the criteria and review high cost packages that may
benefit from other care options. Mental Health has produced a detail report of all Out of
County placements. There maybe some clients that could benefit but it is unlikely to
produce any savings this financial year.

Review Personal budgets where costs exceed previous client packages.

Charges on property - The exchequer team is looking at ways of ensuring that the charges
on property are attributed effectively and efficiently. The team are implementing processes
for the automatic default to legal charge on property on admission to residential care. This
will assist in the reimbursement of the cost of packages to be more effectively and promptly
reclaimed.

Review in-house services - Plans to improve efficiency and value for money for all Council
provided services.

Training on the fair funding calculator is underway with care managers and social workers.
This will assist them in having more accurate cost information on what type of package cost
should be appropriate for a specific clients need. This is likely to achieve cost savings in
2010/11.

Extensive use of telecare as a first response to reduce the dependency on personal care.
The Telecare Steering Group is looking at modelling the service within all service areas,
investigating areas that would benefit from extra capacity.

Charging policy review. The charging group met in September to review current charging
policy and areas that could be considered. A proposal is being written for review.

New ways of working. Telecare and self assessment.

Further Pressures

Safeguarding. £200k budget has been approved to cover the Safeguarding Team. The
current cost for the team is estimated to be £248k. There remains a pressure on the social
work teams as the numbers of referrals have increased. However it is usual in other areas
for other agencies to contribute to the cost of safeguarding and Herefordshire does not
receive contributions from other agencies.

Due to the decrease in grant funding by Central Government the partnership are reviewing
all uncommitted Area Based Grant expenditure; Mental Health Capacity £52k, ASC
Workforce £100k, LDDF £24k and £330k Supporting People underspend. Which may, be
re-allocated to other areas

13



e Legal challenge for Tenancy Agreements. There is currently a case proceeding through
the courts challenging the capacity of understanding of a learning disability client to
complete a tenancy agreement. The outcome could set a precedent and the financial
impact will mean the inability to claim housing benefit. This will result in the transfer of client
back into registered care.

e Reduction in Supporting People Services. Following contract review there has been a
reduction in contracted hours for support such as the “shopping service™ which has lead to
an increase in homecare hours put forward to panel.

A recovery plan of £2.008m was developed by the Acting Director of Adult Social Services to
support the delivery of the current overspend.

Financial Implications

25. These are contained in the body of the report.

Legal Implications
26. None

Risk Management

27. The risks are set out in the body of the report in terms of the potential over spend. The
report notes the actions planned to address this potential overspend.

Consultees

28. Not applicable

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Revenue Budget Monitoring Report for 2010/11 Period to 30" September 2010
Appendix 2 — Activity data relating to Adult Social Care

Appendix 3 — Adult Services Recovery Plan 2010/11

14



(v18°¢) [v6lLo¥ osc’zy [(69s‘c) [(096cL) (219°2) 9G.°1 ¥51°29 866°C9 ETSHITITTEY,)
BuisnoH 2163je)g pue aie) |eI20S }NpY [ejo]
0 v8'L v8'L (A2 (882°1) (zeg't) (b) Gel'e 6LL'E BuisnoH o1bajel)s [ejo|
(e1) 9% ost ford (0g9) (€29) (9¢) L10°) £G0°L BuisnoH Jojoeg sjeld
0 Lo Log 0 (99) (99) 0 19¢ 19¢ spasN Buisnoy
0 0 0 0 (6¥72) (6¥2) 0 6vC 62 julodawon
0€ LLL Ll (¥) (v) 0 e G/l Ll uonessiulwpy @ Juswabeuep
(21) 806 GZ6 o4 (61¥) (i) (zv) 1281 69l SSOUSSO|aWOH
BuisnoH o163jeng
(rig'e)  |uiz'ly Leg'ey  |(€19's)  [(z29'%L) (582°02) 008‘L £88°L9 £89°'¢9 jobpng |ejo1
0 $98°C $98°C 0 0 0 0 $98°C 982 (9gy) uoieoo|ly 19bpng psjeodiyuy
r18e)  [LvEvh ees'or  [(c19%¢)  [(zzov1L) (s8z02) 008l 61L0°6S 61809 (woyshs soueuy
Jad se) aie9 |e100g }npy Joj }3abpng |ejol
0 0 0 (2s2's) o (252's) 152's 0 162'S a|doad buipioddng |ejo|
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 sjoefoid 1011d
0 0 0 (262'9) |0 (262'9) 162'S 0 1G2'S awuweiboid
a|doad Bunuoddng
(v18'e)  [LvE'vy ges'oy  |(9s€) (zL9'v1) (820°S1) (Lsv'e) 610°6S 195°GS ale) |e1o0g }Inpy [ejoL
€60'C (egz'2) (091) 9 (601) (co1) 180 ((2d%4) (29) sHnpy
0 (11) (11) 0 0 0 0 (11) (11) yodsuel|
95 05 90l 0 0 0 9G 0S 90l joeju0) 211gnd
0 0 0 0 (G88) (G88) 0 G88 G88 sisAjeuy spasN
(geL) 040°1 GE6 0 0 0 (gel) 040°} GE6 S80IAIBS J8pIAOId
vl 826 200°'L 0 (2) (2) v. 0€6 ¥00°L aleQ sjelpawIs)u| pJojaIsH
(69) S00°'L 9¢6 (zv1) (zvv')) (¥8G°1) €l YT 0252 sjuswabuelly G/ Uoioag
0 029°'L 029°'L 0 (ovh) (oty) 0 090 0902 ajelojoaulq Bujuoissiwwo)
(¢62°L)  |68L'S 968'¢ 0z (Gth) (szv) (c1e)) ¥£9'G Lze'y jusuuredw| Aiosuas / samjigesiq [edisAud
(216) ¥ze's L0%'2 16 (1eg‘1) (Pev'L) (r1o°1) GG8'6 L¥8'8 UiesH [ejusiy
(209°1)  |6LZ'EL 4% A (44! (gzL'g) (6€'S) (e6€°1) rvesl 1G6'91L sanj|iqesiq buiuies
(910'27)  |90Z'SL oel'cl |(ezL) (£69°Y) (918'%) (¢68°1) 66861 900'8) ajdoad 4op|0
S8JIAISS JINPY

$,0003 $,0003 S,0003 | s.0003 $,0003 $,0003 $,0003 $,0003 $,0003

Jlapun jsedalo4 | ja9bpng Jlapun uinpnO jobpng Japun uinpnO jobpng

| (49n0) | pug aeap | |enuuy | (19n0) | pojoafoid |lenuuy | (18n0) | pajosload | |enuuy

doueLep doueLiepn aoueuep

s|ejo]l @8N awoaouj| ainjpuadxgy 010¢Z 1aquiaideg o) bulojluopy 19bpng

1 Xxipuaddy

15



16



Activity Data Budget vs Actual Appendix 2

Residential & Nursing
March  April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Learning Disabilities

Budget total 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 111 111 111
Actual 110 110 108 108 109 111

Projection 111 111 111 111 111 111
Difference 0 0 ) ) 1) 1 1 1 1 0 0 0
Previous Year 112 112 118 114 115 113 109 105 102 103 103 104 110

Mental Health

Budget total 209 206 203 199 195 191 186 183 180 176 176 176 176
Actual 209 203 200 195 195 202

Projection 193 190 186 182 180 180
Difference 3 0 1 0 4 16 10 10 10 6 4 4

Previous Year 237 237 250 239 237 229 226 226 216 218 215 208 209

Older People

Budget total 242 242 242 242 242 242 242 242 242 242 242 242 242
Actual 242 248 248 255 250 254

Projection 254 254 254 254 254 254
Difference 0 6 6 13 8 12 12 12 12 12 12 12

Previous Year 260 267 278 266 267 272 277 269 278 270 257 252 242

Physical Disabilities

Budget total 24 24 24 23 23 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22
Actual 24 23 23 23 23 22

Projection 22 22 22 21 21 21
Difference 0 (1) 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 (1) (1) (1)
Previous Year 28 0 25 24 24 24 24 23 22 22 22 24 24

Personal Budgets
March  April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Learning Disabilities

Budget total 53 53 54 54 55 56 57 58 59 59 60 61 61
Actual 53 62 65 65 66 73

Projection 74 75 75 76 77 77
Difference 0 8 11 10 10 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
Previous Year 15 20 36 38 37 37 38 38 40 46 51 53 53

Mental Health

Budget total 7 7 7 7 8 9 10 12 14 16 17 18 19
actual 7 7 7 7 7 7

Projection 9 10 11 12 13 14
Difference 0 0 0 (1) (2) (3) (3) (4) (5) (5) (5) (5)
Previous Year 0 0 0 1 1 1 4 4 7 6 5 7 7
Older People

Budget total 30 37 44 51 58 65 72 79 86 93 100 107 114
Actual 29 29 29 29 28 30

Projection 30 30 30 30 30 30
Difference (8) (15) (22) (29) (37) (42) (49) (56) (63) (70) (77) (84)
Previous Year 0 0 0 0 18 18 19 19 27 26 26 28 30

Physical Disabilities

Budget total 48 48 49 52 53 57 64 68 71 73 74 76 76
Actual 48 48 52 51 51 60

Projection 64 67 70 72 76 78
Difference 0 (1) 0 (2) (6) (4) (4) 4) (3) 2) 0 2
Previous Year 2 8 16 20 23 28 30 35 35 39 39 40 48

17



A ity data relating to Social Care

Appendix 2

Learning Disabilities Residential & Nursing

£

c

2

(8]

March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March
Month
—#— Residential & Nursing Budget 2010/11 —@— Residential & Nursing Actual 2010/11 —— Residential & Nursing 2009/10 «==_Projection
Learining Disabilities Personal Budgets
0
2
c
2
o
March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March
Month
—&— Personal Budgets Budget 2010/11 —&— Personla Budgets Actual 2010/11 —#— Personal Budgets 2009/10 === Projection
Mental Health Residential & Nursing

[7)

<

c

2

o

March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March
Month
==@==Residential & Nursing Budget 2010/11 ~—&— Residential & Nursing Actual 2010/11 —#@— Residential & Nursing 2009/10 === Projection




Mental Health Personal Budgets

7]
2
c
2
(8]
March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March
Month
=== Personal Budgets Budget 2010/11 ==@==Personal Budgets Actual 2010/11 === Personal Budgets 2009/10 === Projection
Older People Personal Budgets

2

c

2

o

March April May June

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Month

July Aug

==gr==Personal Budgets Budget 2010/11

==@==Personla Budgets Actual 2010/11

=== Personal Budgets 2009/10 === Projection

Clients

March April May June

Physical Disabilities Residential & Nursing

Feb March

Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan

Month

July Aug

=== Residential & Nursing Budget 2010/11

=g Residential & Nursing Actual 2010/11 === Residential & Nursing 2009/10 == Projection

19




Clients

March April May June

Physical Disabilities Personal Budgets

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March

Month

=== Personal Budgets Budget 2010/11

=== Personla Budgets Actual 2010/11 w=gr== Personal Budgets 2009/10 === Projection

20




Adult Services Recovery Plan 2010/11 APPENDIX 3
2010/ 2011
Non -
RECURRENT | RECURRENT
£ £

Legacy Homecare Packages - Central review team linked to the
SCHEME 1 safeguarding team. Input from Service Managers 32 500
SCHEME 2 Legacy Residential packages.- Reylew of out of county learning disability

packages plus older people residential. 65,000

- : n - - - S

SCHEME 3 Legacy Re.5|dent|al packages - Review of section Section 117 5% to be

completed in order to charge for care.. 31,525
SCHEME 4 Capitalisation of Community Equipment - Transfer high cost equipment

against social care transformation capital pot 106,000
SCHEME 5 Home Care Packages - Implementing increase in cost effective home

based support as an alternative to residential care 45,600

Impact of reablement on hospital discharge - Target to increase
SCHEME 6 reablement to achieve 60% of all clients coming through the service to no

longer require long term support. 132,000
SCHEME 7 Telecare - Utilise above review team; add as a panel requirement,

champion in each team, not in addition to care packages but instead. 180,000
SCHEME 8 Shaw Contract (eliminating voids) - Maximise contract —incl redesign

services for older people to include other client groups e.g. LD & Dementia.

Maximise voids. Plus additional income in 11/12 through charging 76,133

Supporting People Actuals - Capacity to deliver services. Cuts to funding
SCHEME 9 CLG. 595,000
[SCHEME 10 |Norfolk House - Decommission.service | | 53,215 |

Recharge for Continuing Health Care work - Recharge to raise funds-
SCHEME 11 agreed to remove
SCHEME 12 Day Care (Learning Disabilities) - Agree service model based on current

demographics Review with a view to close and check all attendees eligible. 25,000
SCHEME 13 Day Care (Age concern) - Consider decommissioning of age concern day

care contracts. Facilitate them to run service themselves. 20,000
SCHEME 14 Charging (Day Care, Transport and Referral process) - Remove subsidy

from day centres, transport & tighten referral process. 75,000
SCHEME 15 Rose Gardens contract - Review contract due to high initial charge to

residents going to provider. (re specification of contract) - agreed to remove

Direct payments - Pay more frequently to service user. Users with excess
SCHEME 16 funds at the end of the year. 100,000
ISCHEME 17 |EMS - Finance module required for FWi. | | |
SCHEME 18 Mldlgpd Heart - Robust management structure. Review what they are

providing.
[SCHEME 19 JTo be identified [ 471,000 ] |
TOTAL SAVINGS TO BE MADE ALL SCHEME'S [ 1272000 | 735973 |

21




22



AGENDA ITEM 7

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND STRATEGIC HOUSING
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 13 DECEMBER 2010
TITLE OF REPORT: | HEREFORDSHIRE 2010 JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS
ASSESSMENT (JSNA)
PORTFOLIO AREA: | CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FINANCE

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose
To draw the Commiittee’s attention to the following aspects of the 2010 JSNA:

1) The new web-based Herefordshire JSNA is a dynamic integrated resource that also draws
upon the many information sources and analyses that are available within Herefordshire

2) An analysis of the key points and recommendations contained within the JSNA web-site have
been produced in a summary document (see Appendix 1)

3) The findings of the 2010 JSNA should underpin decisions regarding future plans, strategy
development, budget decisions and commissioning of services

Recommendation(s)
THAT the Committee

(@) Recognises the usefulness of the JSNA web-site and the summary document for
the local health and social care economy, as a dynamic resource that also draws
upon the wide range of local information and analysis undertaken across
Herefordshire;

(b) Notes the Key Points and Recommendations from the 2010 JSNA (Appendix 1);

(c) Encourages the use of the findings of the JSNA across the local health and
social care economy, to inform future plans, strategy development, budget
decisions and commissioning of services.

Key Points Summary

o The JSNA should be used across the local health and social care economy to underpin
decisions regarding future plans, strategy development, budget decisions and
commissioning of services

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Dr A Talbot-Smith, Public Health Department NHS Herefordshire (01432) 344344

23



It is the central resource that draws together all the information required to provide an over-
arching understanding of the needs of the people of Herefordshire - it identifies current
needs across the spectrum of well-being, health and social care, as well as considering
how those needs are likely to change in the coming years

The JSNA has been developed into a web-based dynamic resource, that will be updated
throughout the year and that also draws upon the breadth and depth of information and
analyses undertaken across Herefordshire.

Alternative Options

1

Not applicable.

Reasons for Recommendations

1

The new style JSNA has provided a dynamic resource that also draws upon the breadth
and depth of analysis already undertaken across Herefordshire, providing a robust
assessment of needs.

Ensuring that JSNA is used to underpin decisions regarding future plans, strategy
development, budget decisions and commissioning of services will ensure that they are
based upon robust assessments of need.

Introduction and Background

3

This is the third JSNA for Herefordshire. It has been produced by a cross-Directorate
project group from the Council and NHS Herefordshire, in particular from the Research
Team, Public Health, Integrated Commissioning and Children and Young People’s
services.

The project group have retained responsibility for determining the content of the JSNA, as
well as for ensuring the accuracy and data quality of information in the JSNA.

As described below we have built upon the strengths of previous JSNAs, moving towards
an electronic web-based resource. This enables it to be dynamic and ‘continuous’, and as
well as containing analyses undertaken specifically for JSNA can explicitly draw upon
other information and analyses undertaken across Herefordshire.

Key Considerations

6

As in previous years the 2010 JSNA examines the important things that affects peoples
lives, their health, and their well-being. Thus it does include peoples health and social
care needs, but these are set within the context of the other things that affect peoples
lives.

This year the project group have sought to build upon the strength’s of previous JSNAs, by
utilising a similar ‘chapter heading’ structure that focuses on population groups, by
recognising the ongoing importance of much of the analyses in previous JSNAs, and by
including the annual analyses we undertake specifically for JSNA.

We have also sought to explicitly draw upon the breadth and depth of other information
and analyses already undertaken within Herefordshire, to provide a more efficient
approach to JSNA but also to increase it's robustness. This includes unique information
resources such as the State of Herefordshire Report, as well as a considerable number of
information and analyses undertaken as part of ongoing service planning and
development across NHS Herefordshire and the Council.

24



9 To facilitate this approach we have developed JSNA into a web-based resource, able to
link seamlessly across other resources, information and analyses. This has enabled us
make it more dynamic, with ongoing ‘in-year’ additions of relevant information and
analyses as they become available. It also means that it is readily available to
stakeholders, facilitating their ability to utilise it within decision making.

10 The ability of the JSNA to improve population health and well-being depends upon it being
used across the health and social care sector and by other stakeholders, to underpin
decisions regarding future plans, strategy development, budget decisions and
commissioning of services

Community Impact

11. The community impact of the JSNA will depend upon how the findings of JSNA are
utilised within strategy development, service planning and commissioning decisions

Financial Implications

12. Not applicable

Legal Implications

13 These proposals deliver the relevant statutory duties of NHS Herefordshire and
Herefordshire Council
Risk Management
14 Risk 1 - The findings of the JSNA do not reflect the needs of Herefordshire’s population

15 Risk 2 — The findings of the JSNA are not used across the health and social care
economy in decisions regarding future plans, strategy development, budget decisions and
commissioning of services

16 The proposals in this paper are explicitly designed to mitigate those risks
Consultees
17 Many of the analyses within the 2010 JSNA have been prepared in consultation with a

wide range of partner organisations and interests.

18 The 2010 JSNA is being presented and discussed with a wide range of stakeholders,
including NHS Herefordshire, Herefordshire Council and Herefordshire Partnership. Their
views will be taken into account as the JSNA is updated and taken forward.

Appendices
19. Appendix 1 — Herefordshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 2010. Key Points and
Recommendations

Background Papers
o None identified

The full web-based JSNA resource is available at www.herefordshire.gov.uk/jsna

It can be obtained in an alternative format or language by contacting the Herefordshire Corporate
Policy and Research Team, Herefordshire Council, PO Box 4, Hereford, HR4 0XH.

25



26



aa1yspioyaiaH jo ajdoad ayy 10y 1ay1a60) BunjIOm
EY T JLYEYETY] [1PUNO)
SHN 941YspiojaidH S

YN AOD allysplojeley@ Wes)yoieasal [lews Jo 861092 ZE 10 euoydajs) uo wes |
yoleassay 3 Aoljod sjeiodio) aliysplojaisH 8y} 1oejuod ases|d sbenbue) Jo Jewio) sAlleuIs)E UB Ul JUsWwnoop SIYl alinbal noA pjnoys

BUSI/YN AOD SJIJSPJOJaIay MMM :}e 924N0SaJ Paseq oM B Sse d|qe|IeA. S| JUaWsSSasse [N} ayL

SUOIjepuaWWOod3y pue sjuiod Aoy

01L0Z JUsWISsassy spaaN d169jeu}s Julof a4IyspaojaioH




(010Z 1890100) L'LA
4 "SUOIIBPUSILWLIODaY pue sjulod A8y "010Z YNSI aJiysplojaisH

BUSIN"ACD 9IIUSPIOJ3IaY MMM Je d|qe|lene YNSI Paseq-gom |ind |

sasA|eue mau se |[am se ‘s|doad |e20| YIm SuoISSNIsIp pue uoieynsuod Buiobuo ybnolyy pauieb ‘ yuiyy sjdoad 1eym, uo SNoo} JINO PanUUOD OS|e aABY
3\ "sanl| s,a/doad 1084k Jey) sioioe) Jayjo pue yjesy-||i pue Ajjeuow jo sesned Jolew ayi se yons ‘AJunod ayj Joj Juepodull Sanssl, Juslayip Se ||am

se ‘g|doad Jap|o pue sjdoad BunoA pue ualpjiyd Buipnoul ‘Aunod sy} ssotoe sdnoub, Jusiaylp U0 SNO04 JINO panuiluod aAey am yoeoudde siyy ybnody

"Hodal paseqg-gam
aliyspJlojalay Jo ae)s sy} ol Buull Agq diysiaulied aliyspioiaisH sy} JO 82In0Sal uolewloul anbiun ayy pasijiin aAey am pue ‘ssad0.id juswdojansp
pue a21A1as Bulobuo sy} Bulnp padojaasp sasA|eue pue UolleWIOUI papn|oul 8ABY aM ‘YNSI Jo) usyeuapun Ajjeolioads sasAjeue Buipnjoul se ||am se
— VNSI 8y} wJiojul 0} pash uoljewojul Jo yidap pue yipealq sy} asealoul 0} sn psjgeus os|e sey yoeosdde siy| 92Inosal e se YNSI 8y} ajepdn (1eak
-u1) A|snonuiuod o} sn s|qeus [Im jeyy Ajjioe} peseq-gam olweuhp e Buidojeasp “‘YNSI 8y} 0} yoeosdde mau e pajdope aney am Jeskh siy] “Ajunod ay)

JO spaau ay} jo Buipuejsiapun Ino aAoidwi AlSnonuiuod am ainsua o} Buijiom usaq aABY am ‘gQ0Z Ul JUBLWISSaSSY SpaspN 2i68jes)S juiof 1SJl} JN0 8oUIS

:dojanap ||Im }1 Moy pue YNSI S.Jeahk siy) Jnoge mau s Jeyp

"Jsow papasu ale Aay) alaym sasiAles pue Asuow jabiey sn djay pue sue|d aininy wiojul senuoud asayl "aq pjnoys
saiuond Jno jeym Apjuapl sisuped Ino pue aJiysplojaisH SHN ‘[1ouno) aliyspiojaisH sdiay y buiag-jlam pue yyesy s.s|doad Buipiebal passaippe
a8 0] paau leys sanssi Jolew ay) Buifyuspl Ag "Buiag-jjem pue yjesy pue ajyl| jo Aljenb ‘seoueyo-ajl| s.a|doad 108e 1eyy sbuiyl ulew Jayyo ay) se
[[oM Se ‘spaau aJed |e1o0s pue yjesy pajolpald pue jusind sauiwexs }| “uoneindod saliyspiojaisy Jo spasu Bulag-||am pue yjesy ayj Uuo uoljew.ioul

ay} ||e ‘sseooid snonunuod ‘elbuls e ul ‘Jayiebo) sbulq YNSI YL ‘Juswssassy spasN 2168jenS Iof pliyl saliyspiojelaH jo Alewwns e si siyl

1104 S1 (VNSI) Juawissassy spasaN 216ajes)s Julor ay) Jeym

0L0Z LNJINSSISSY
SA33N JI931VdlS INIOr JHIHSAYHO043d3H 3H1 40 AYVINANS

28



(010Z 1890100) L'LA
€ "SUOIIBPUSILWLIODaY pue sjulod A8y "010Z YNSI aJiysplojaisH

‘auo
uey} aJow ssoJoe sjelado ||IM sanssi pue sjulod awWos N ‘saway} Bulyoielano awos ojul Jayjebo) asay) meip 0} pali} 8ABY AN "8Jnjny 8y} Ul pue mou
yioq ‘aliyspJioalay Ul sanijenbaul @onpal 0} pue ‘Bulag-jjam pue yjeay aroidwi 0} pajyoe) 8q 0} pasu jey) sanssi Jolew ayy pajybiybiy aaey am ssbed

BuImo||0} BY} U] "SjusWale)s auljpesy asay) pulyaq uspply, 186 ues yaliym ssiiunwiwiod Ino Buioey senssi juesliubis Jo Jaquinu B aJe aIay} ‘0s UsA]

"Moddns pooyJnoqybiau pue sdnoib Asejunjon ‘uoioe Ajunwiwo jo yiomydyed Yol e Buipiroid J0joss ¢ JUBIgIA B sey allysplojeloH <«

"aAl| 0} aoe|d B sk eale |B20| JIaY} Yum palsiies ale (Ua} Jo 1no aulu Aluesu) Ajjeuoneu yum patedwos sjdoad jo uolpodoud Jaybiy yonw y <«
"(uInJumop d1WouU09d a3y} Jo }nsal e se Ajablie|) 60/800Z Ul O} paquii|o )i [SA3] U} Je sulewsal Buluiel) Jo JuswAodws ‘uolednps ul jJou spjo Jeak

g1-91 jo abejussiad sy} ybnouyye ‘Ajjeuoneu uey) swud pue juswAiojdwaun JO S|9AS| JOMO| YoNW SeY SJIYSPJIOJaISH ‘UOISSadal ay} UIM USAT <«
'34S09

Je sepelb O — ¥ aiow Jo aAly Buinsiyoe juad Jad 7 ypum ‘ejoym e se puelbug ui uey) suoneoyiienb sapaq job Ajjessuab sjdoad Bunok InQ <«
"USWOM JO} G/ pue usW Joj |/ JBAO SI yuiq ye Aouejoadxs ayl| Ayyesay - Ajjeuoneu

uey} ssau||l wisy-buo| Buniwi e 3noyum pue yjeay poob ui saAl| Jisy} jo uoipodoud Jajealb e aAll 0} pajoadxa ale allyspiojaisH ul uioqg ajdosd <«

‘Aleuoneu ueyy Jabuoj Apybiis sl yaiym ‘g/ 0} usw :sjoym e se pue|buz ul uey} Jabuo| Jeah e ‘¢g 0] abeiaAR UO Al USWOAN <«

:Buiag-||am pue saAl| J1ay}

109e Jey) sbuiyy sy Jo seousliadxa aAlisod aaey pue ‘Aoueloadxa a)l| [euoneu yim paledwod tabuo| sl ‘Ayyesy aie aaysplojaiaH ul aidoad |jeianQ

‘eusIpin"AoB a11ysSpiojalay MMM Je 3|ge[IeA. SI YdIYM 82Inosal YNSI Pesed gam [|n}
3y} JISIA 0} NoA abeinoous pinom am ‘s|iejap aJoW 10} — suolepualWwosal pue sulod Aay ay) paybijybiy aaey am juswnoop Alewwns Hoys siyl UIYIAA

"spuaJ} pue sanssi Buiblawa mau awos aJe alay} ybnoyye ‘allyspiojaiay Joj jJuaiing ulewsal SYNSI |enuue snoiaaid ul psiyiauspl senssi ay Jo Auepy

SpuaJ} pue sjoej} ulew ayj :Mouy am Jeym

‘Buiyew uolisiosp pue Buipes Ajloud wioul 0} pash aq Ued Jey} pa2Jnosal uoljewloul 8yep-oi-dn,

oIWRUAP B YNSI @ BW [|IM SIY} — 8|ge|leAe awo2aq sasAjeue pue UoiBWIoUI MaU Se Jeak-ul pajuswa|ddns ag mou |IM uolewuloul SIy} JO ||V "Blep Jo

29



(010Z 1890100) L'LA
14 "SUOIIBPUSILWLIODaY pue sjulod A8y "010Z YNSI aJiysplojaisH

"g|doad pa||iys-1was pue paj|iysun Aq Ajoieuolriodoldsip o) usag osje sey uswAhojdwaun “Jayuny asealoul 0} pajoadxs ale pue UOISSad8l

3y} JO }nsal B se pasealoul aAey slaquinu ‘puejbul pue spuelpii\ ISSA\ SY} 0} paledwod Mo| ulewas JuswAojdwaun Jo s|oAs| ybnoyyy <«
‘g|doad BunoA pue uaip|iyo pue sdnoub ajqetsu|nA 104 anssi Jejnoiued e si Ssiy | "SadIAIas Aay awos Buissadoe A nolip aoe) Auew

pue (pue|bug ul eale Aylloyine [oAs|-AJunod Aue jo uoiuodoud 1saybiy ayl) seale pajeindod Ajesieds AlaA ul saall uoneindod ayj Jo Jauenb v «
‘moub 0}

anuiuod o} pajoadxa sI SIY} Joj puewap syl pue ‘Buisnoy ajqepioye pull oy 8166nss ‘ajdoad JabunoA jses| Jou ‘AJunod ayj ssoloe ajdoad Auely «
"ualp|iyo Joj|aael | ewoy pue AsdA9 Ajgejou ‘sdnoub oluyie
Auouiw woyy sjidnd pue ‘aled ul 8soy} ‘spasu |euoiieonpa |eioads yym asoyy Buipnjoul ‘ualpjiyod sjgelaulna jo sdnoib sjqeniyuspl usamiaq sdeb
Juswulepe esiiubis |3s ale alay} ‘sisad By} Uey) |[9M SSB| Op [|1}S ABY} UaIp|Iyd JS)e pad0o| JO JUSWSASIYOE |euolleonps ay} Joj Ajjeuoieu
yum patedwod [jam Apanedl swiopad adiysplojalaH ybnouyyy -Buisealour si (syiepy pue ysiibug buipnpoul 3509 e sapelb H-,v alow 1o

G Buinaiyoe sjidnd) 3509 1e spiem Bulwlopad 1siom pue }saq ay) usamiaq deb ay) pue ‘Juswuielle [euoileonpa 0} payull Alues|o sl uolleAdaq «
"alaymas|a BulAl| 8soy) uey} - suolipuod jo abuel

B WwoJ} alp Jo |eydsoy 0} papiwpe aq o} A|ay1| aiow Buieq — sawoojno yjeay asiom aduslladxs seale paAudap saliyspiojaisH ul Buial ajdosd <«
"JJSUILIOST pue piojalaH ‘pieAwolg Jo seale Ul SAl Ul OM} Alueau

‘aoue]SUl JOJ ‘SBWO0OUI MO| UYlIM spljoyashoy ul Bulall 1o pue g9 pabe sjdoad jo suoiodold ybiy Ajbuisealour saey AJunod ay} jJo sued swos «
‘Buiuspim aq 0} swaas AJUnod ay} JO }sal Y} pue seale
panudap jsow ay) usamiaq deb ay} - SBWODUI MO| YIM SPIOYSSNOY Ul SAl| ‘PIOJSISH pue Jajsulwoa] jo Auenolued ‘sease awos ul Ualp|iyd

1o suolodoud ybiy AjBuisealoul pue ‘400z WoI4 pasealoul sey seale asay) JO ||e ul uoleAlsdsp swooul Buioualiadxs sjdoad jo uoluodold sy «
"s}o|wey pue sabej|iA
[BJNJ [BISASS pUB SUMO} }aXJew Jaylo ay} punole pue ul sjaxood |lews ypm Jayjaboy ‘Isjsuiwos] pue plojalsy jo sued ul (puejbu3 ul paaudap

}sow jJuad Jad Gz ay} uiyum sease) uoneaudsp aidiynw ‘||elano Jo Ss|aAd| 3saybiy ayy yim ‘uoneAudsp jo s}exo0d, Jo Jaquinu e sey allysplojeleH <«

"suolpuod Buishoy Jood pue swooul mo| ‘JuswAojdwaun

‘SIS MO| ‘Juswuleye-iapun [euoneonpae Buipnjoul ‘uoieAldsp Jo sainsesw Jayjo pue saljenbaul yyesy ussmiaq uoneioosse Buoss B sI alayl

uoneAlidaqg pue saniijenbauj (L

30



(010Z 1890100) L'LA
g "SUOIIBPUSILWLIODaY pue sjulod A8y "010Z YNSI aJiysplojaisH

"Syuow ma} e AJuo Joj Aejs Jsow Ing Jawwns sy} Ul awi} suo Aue e puesnoy) [eJanas ale alay] ‘adoin3 uisiseq wody
Alulew ‘siaxiom juelbiw Jo sisquinu abie| e aABY 0} SSNUNUOD aJIYSpPIoJBIaH ‘010z Ul paulioap swuey [eoo| Aq pakojdws siaquinu ayy ybnouyyly <«
"‘Buimolb si sy} Inq - uoiendod o1uyyg AjJoul\ pue ueisy Moe|g |[ews A|aAle[al B Sey aJIYSpIojaIsH <«
"S92IAISS S,Ualp|Iyo Jo abuel sjoym ayy ssoloe Buluueld 1o} suonedidwi aaey |IM SIU} — A|i3JS4 Ul Sealoul [euoljeu e Buuouiw
‘sieak om) }se| ay} ul pajoadxs uey} SYHIQ 8Jow Usaq aABY 818y} SJIYSPIOJISH UIYYIM SSBSIOSP 0} SSNUIUOD USIP|IYD JO Jaquinu ay} ybnouyyly <«
"salljigesip Buiutes| yum sjdoad abe Buiyiom Jo) saiiunuoddo JuswAojdwa
B} asealoul 0} pue ‘salljioe) AlluNWWOd SSa22e 0] spasu uoddns Jo A3 1saybiy ay) yum ajdoad uoddns Ajgiendoidde jsow am moy Apauspl
0} paau am swe) |esauab alow u| sadlAles ajelidoldde abe Joj pasu sy} ul asealoul ue aq ||Im alay] -abe Asy) se Aouspuadep ybiy aney o}
Al@Y1| a1e awoy }e BuiAll saijigesip ajelapow Yim asoy} pue ‘GLoz Ag ajgnop |im saijjigesip Bulules| ypm Gg Jano pabe sjdoad jo Jaquinu syl <«
"JO} paJed pue pamaIA
ale enuawsap yum sidoad Aem ayy ul sbueyod Joj }sA|eyed ay} aq ||IIM ‘01L0Z 4O pus ay} Aq pasijeuls 8q 0} anp ‘allyspiojalsi ul euawag Yim Jjsm
buinrg ueld Buluoissiwwo) Julof syl "sJaied Jisy} Joj Joddns Jo ¥}oe| pue ‘pajoslie S|enpIAIpUl JO) 81BD pue Juswieal) JO YOoe| e 0} Spes| Siyl
"Ajunod ay} ul Buipodad Jspun sisabbns UOIIPUOD BY} JO SBjel [BUOIBU UO PaSE( 82Ua1IND20 Pajewl}ss 0} eljuswap Jo aous|eAald papiodal
d9 jo onesayl "0£0z A9 009G 03 B|NOP }sowle pinod QLOg Ul pajoaye sjdoad 006'z Palewss ay) jey) isebbns suonosfold sysod pue
pajoaye ajdoad Jo sisquinu Yjoq JO SWId} Ul alIYspiojaiaH Ul a1ed [e1o0s pue yjeay o} abus|eys jusbin pue jueoniubis e syussaid ejuswaq <«
"SpuslJ} JO Saljlwe} JIsy} 0} aJed apinoid o} Buiney
a|doad jo Jaquinu ay} 03 Apueoiubls ppe |Im ‘einyondis uoleindod ayj Jo Buiebe ayy 03 Ajulew anp ‘AljiIgesip 10 S[9AS| Ul sasealoul pajoadxy <«
‘Buisnoy pajeay Ajayenbapeul ‘1ood jo pue uoie|osl JO Ysu }sajealb je s pue aied |e1o0s pue yjesy
uo spuewap 1sajealb sy Je) Ag saxew dnodb sIy] "00Z‘0L 0} 9Z0Z Ad a|gnop jsow|e 0] pajdadxe sI JaAo pue gg pabe sjdoad Jo Jeqwinu ay| <«
"8lojaq pJesy usaq sey )l 8snedaq jsnl uspobio) Jou pue — pasapisuod aq 0} pasau os|e solydelbowap Jayi0 "Spasu aJed |e1o0s pue yjeasy Jiay}
JO swua)} ul sueaw siy} Jeym Aguspi o} Juepodwi os|e si i Ing ‘Bwi} swos Joj pasiubooal usaq sey JaAo pue g9 pabe ajdoad jo Jaquinu Buisealoul ay |

solydeibowaq Buibueys (g

31



(010Z 1890100) L'LA
9 "SUOIIBPUSILWLIODaY pue sjulod A8y "010Z YNSI aJiysplojaisH

‘suoneoljdwi aoinosal Buibeuew se ||om se Juswabeuew sauloipaw sielidoidde pue
ajes BuliNsus JO sWId) Ul ‘aliysplojalaH Jo) anssi juepodwi ue ulewsal |m siyy jeyy uesw uoieindod Buibe saaysplojaley pue ‘sbnip Bunsixa
Jo} suonjeolidde mau Jo uonedluapl 8y} ‘sBnip mau Jo Juswdoaasp PENUIRUOD 8yl "SHN 8Y} Ul UOUSAISIUI UOWWOD JSow 8y} si Bulquosald <«
"'9S9(0 10 JyBlamiano ale ualp|iyo pjo-Jeahk || Jnoj ul suo uey aiow eyl Buiuiaouod Altenoiued si i pue Ajjelsuab pue|bug ueyy synpe 1sbuowe
Alsaqo Jo sjel Jaybiy e sey aliysplojalay -yjeap ainjewald pue Ajjigesip ‘yjesy Jood 03 Jojoes Buinguiuod Jofew e se Buibiaws s AJiseqO <«
"unip 106 pue |oyooje JuLp pue axows ‘sHIb Ajjeloadss ‘eajdoad BunoA jo suoiuodoud ybiy eyl mouy osje app ‘Buisealsul
aJe suoissiwpe |eydsoy paje|al-joyodle jo sajel Ing ‘yYieay-|i pue yesp ainjewsaud jo asned juepodwi jsow 8jbuis sy} sulewsal Bupjows <«
"(Bulusalos Jajiaq Jo }Nsal 8y} 89 p|Nod Siy}
ybnouye) seseasip papiwsuel} A|lenxas ul asu dieys e usaq sey a1ay} pue ‘usasu sey Ing mo| AjpAie|al s saloueubaid sbeuss) Jo Jaquinu syl <«
sieah G Jo abe ay) Ag Aedsap Y100} Jo aoualladxe awos Buiaey oAl Alans ul om] Yyum Jood si ualp|iyo Jo yyeay |[ejusp syl <«
"pajoadxa ag pjnom uey} Jaybiy yonw si sIapJosip
yjlesy |elusw SNoUas JSoW ay} YIM SH9-g| Jo Jaquinu ay} ajiym ‘Buiseasoul ale pue Ajjeuoieu pue Ajjeuoibal ueyy Jaybiy aie ssjel spoing <«
ajel [euoljeu ay} ueyy Jaybiy
Aybiis sulewals ajel Ajljele) syl sieak Juadal JSA0 pasealdsp sey Ssjusplooe peod ul painful Aisnolias 1o pa||y ajdoad jo Jaquinu ay} ybnouyyy «
"Ajunod ayy ul Jusjeaald asow ||i3s ale Aay} Inqg ‘sieak Juadal Jano Ajjeuoiieu uey Ajpides aiow usj|e} Sey a)0J)s 0} paje|al syjeap Jo sjel syl <«
"s19||1Y 1586619 s,AJUnoo 8y ulewsal Ing Ajjeuoibal pue Ajjleuoieu uey} JoMo| ale aseasip Jeay AJBuolod pue JaoUed JO S|aAd| 8yl <«
"sinoineysq ajhisay|
Ayyeayun, asay} Jo }nsal ay} se Buibiews ase sabus|ieyd Jamau awi} swes sy} Je ‘sinoineysq ajhisay| Ayjeayun, Aq pasusnjjul aie asay} Jo |[e AlJesu

18U} Mouy apA 'YNSI 6002 @Ui 1o uoneslignd ay) souls aJlysplojaisH Uiyym pabueyoun ulewsas Ajjenow pue yiesy-|i Jo sesned Jolew ayy jo Auepy

sinolAeyag paje|jal-yyeaH pue yjesH (¢

32



(010Z 1890100) L'LA
L "SUOIIBPUSILWLIODaY pue sjulod A8y "010Z YNSI aJiysplojaisH

"sp|o-Jeah y-Gz 1sbuowe
Ajleoadss ‘sapioins aonpal 0} se ||am se ‘swsjqold yjesy |elusw uowwod yum ajdoad o sdo) eln uoddns aiow spinoid o) pasu e st asyl (S
‘'sabe ||e ssoioe — sjuapIooe adnpal 0] sswwelboid Buiobuo pasu apn (v
"sal|iwey Jisy) pue ‘ajdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyd ‘synpe Joj anu} si siy] “AuAnoe |eaisAyd Jo s|aag| pue jaIp s.a|doad
anosdwi pue ‘Bunuup abuig, pue ayejul |oyode aonpal ‘Bupjows Jo aousieAasd sy} adnpal 0} HJOM O} pasu am Jenoiued u| "asessip pue
yjieay-||! Jusaaid ues am yoiym ybnouyy pue Ajjeriow pue yjeay-||i 0} ajnqguiuo ey} sinoineyaq ajAisay| ayy Jusnaid o} pasu Buimolb e st aisyl (g
"S}IJouUS(Q [BIO0S 1O} Se ||am Sse ‘Alouods s,Aunod ay} Jo Yibualys ainyny ayy Joj Juepodwi ale Buluiely Jo JuswAojdws ‘uonesnps
ul jJou s|doad BunoA jo Jagwnu a8y} adnpal 0} sainses|\ ‘Buleg-|jem pue yjesy Jisy} uo se |[om Se ‘sadueyds-ayl| s.8|doad uo uonealdsp
pue juswAojdwaun Jo s}oays 8y} asiwiulw 0} suoiesiuebio Jsuped yYpm YIOM 0} pasuU am )8} dJe UOISSSI8) DIWOUO0IS JO S}odys ayl sy (g
"pPaoNpoJjUl 4B BIJOSUOD BUIUOISSILIWOID pPal-49 sk Bulnjonis-al pue abueyod |euonesiuebio ybnoayy
papJlenbajes aq 0} pasu [|IM yoeoudde siy] "ualpjiyd yum saljiwes Buipnjoul ‘uonealdsp wouy Buuayns uoneindod ayy ul sdnolb pue seale 1oy
anJ} Alieinoiued si siy| “suonesiueblo Jsuped ssoioe AlaAldp pue BuluolssIlWwoD 82IA18S 0} yorolddde pajeulplo-09 B ainsua 0} pasu am ‘Bulaq
-llem pue yyeay Jisy 0} ajnquiuod jey} sbuiyy sy} se ||am se ‘uoneindod s a11ysplojalaH JO Spasu aled |el1o0S pue yjeay sy} ssalppe o} ate am §| (|
"leak ay)
1noybnouy} a|ge|ieAe swooaq sasA|eue pue uoljewlojul se A|lsnonuuod payepdn si YdIym ‘99Inosal alis-gam YNSI® 8U} UO sasAjeue pajielsp sy} Uiyim
punoy a4 ||IM SUOI}BPUSWIWOI3I d1y10ads-eale pajie}ap alow ay} — |9As|-ybiy, A}Issadau Jo ale suollepuswiwodal 8say] "Jeak jse| sy} Jano padojansp

aAey jey) senssi Buiblswsa pue mau aejnsdesus op Asyj ybnoyye ‘sieak snoinaid ul 8Soy} 0} Je(ilIS Ulewal uoloe alinbal jey) sebusjjeyo ulew ay |

suoljepuswWWOoIdYy

"9}IS-JaM 38U} U0 punoy} aq Os|e ued ue|d juswaroidw| yjjeaH s,aliysplojeiaH

SHN ybnouyy Buiag-|lam pue yyesy s.sidoad saocidwi 0} moy Buipiebal smaln saspjoysyels JayiQ paleadsal aq Asains ay) pjhoys syepdn |im
BM UDIUM pue a)is-gam YNSI 8} Uo d|dejieAe |[i}s s Ydlym pue YNSI 6002 U} Ul pajiejap am yoiym ‘Aaning ajiT jo Ajjenp, auy yoouspun am goozg Ul
SN PIOL d9AeH 3jdoad Jeym (¥

33



(010Z 1890100) L'LA
8 "SUOIIBPUSILWLIODaY pue sjulod A8y "010Z YNSI aJiysplojaisH

"g|gejleAR SaW02ad }l Se 8)Is-gam a8y} 0} pappe a4 |IM | /01 0Z Inoybnoiy} usyeuspun si jeys siskjeue pue uonewloul BulobuQ “ajis-gem

VNSI 8y} Uo eusln-Aob-aliyspiojaiay MMM }e punoj 8q Ued sanssi asay) Jo Buipuejsiapun ||n} e sapinold Jey) sisA|eue yydep-ul pue [ilep 8yl

sjuswdojaAap aining

"10)08s Alojnyess ayy pue suolesiueblo J0joss ¢ usamiaq syul| Jo YMolb aAloaye 8y} aInsus o} paau
os[e ®\\ ‘peaids s} Buibeinoous pue sisixe ) alaym aous|j@dxa pue ddnoeld poob esiubodal ‘suolesiuebio Jojoss ¢ Hoddns 0} pesu S\ (L1
"ys||bug yeads 0}
Aljige ajqeuoseal e Apyoinb uieb oy sjdoad Joy seniunyoddo sjenbape ale aiay) ainsus 0} pasu am sabueyd aliysplolaiaH o Xiw diuyie ayl sy (0l
"SBWOY UMO JIay} pue Sai}i|eoo] umo Jisy} ul ajdoad o} saoinias Bulig 0y saibojouyos) mau
JO @sn a)ew pue a)eAoUUl 0} BNUIBUOD 0} PaaU am — dljews|qold Sa2IAISS [|e JO AJBAIIBP PUB O} SS9I0B ayew Ued allysplojaiay Jo Ajjeins ayl (6
"UOIJUBJE PBNUIUOD SPaaU ||l}S UaJp|Iyd Ja|[aAel] pue AsdAc) pue uaip|iyo
Jaye payoo| se yons sdnoib jo JuswaAsIyoe-I1spun [euoleonpa ayl "seale [einJt ul Ajjeroadss ‘sedlales s.ualp|iyd Alenb ybiy jo Ayjiqeuieisns
3y} o} abus|ieyd e asod Aay} Jou IO Jayldym Apjuapl 0} pasojuow aq 0} Pasu [IM 3)el Ui aY} pue allysplojalsy Ul ualpjiyo jo Jaqwnu ayl (8
"Sa1jlUNWIWOD |B20| YIM Bunjiom alinbal |im ‘sisjj@Ael] pue saisdAo) Joj sayoyd pasiioyine [euoiippe Joj pasu pasealdul Ue Se Yons ‘sanss|
JBYl0 "swsajqold yyesy |eyusw yym sjdoad jo spasu Buisnoy sy} 1 ool 0} Aem Japun si YIoAA “suolieindod ayj jo spasu Buisnoy pauoddns
ay} apinoud 0} papasu sayoeoldde aAeAOUUl YIM ‘palapIsuod aq 0} pasu sdnolb Jsayjo pue asay} Jo spasu Buisnoy auy siy} ypm wapuey U (2
"SBAI| pP3||4In} pesd| O} pue
adod 0} way) a|geus 0} ‘passalppe ad 0} pPasu Os|e Saljiwe) pue siaied Jisy} Jo spasu Joddns sy “swa|gqold yjesy |ejuswl aIdAas 0} ajelapowl
yum sjdoad pue ‘sanljigesip Buluies| yum sjdoad ‘enuswsp yim asoyl ‘g Jano ajdoad sspnjoul siy| ‘Sswoy UMO Jisy) ul Apuspuadapul

OAI| 0} W8y} a|geus 0] Sa2IAISS Juawalge-al pue poddns pasijeuositad adinbal | oym uoneindod sy jo uoluodold Buisealoul ue si aidyl (9

34



AGENDA ITEM 8

& Herefordshire

Council

MEETING: ADULT SOCIAL CARE & STRATEGIC HOUSING
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 13™ DECEMBER 2010

TITLE OF REPORT: | AUDIT COMMISSION INSPECTION OF STRATEGIC
HOUSING SERVICES

REPORT BY: Assistant Director Homes and Communities
PORTFOLIO AREA: | ENVIRONMENT AND STRATEGIC HOUSING
ADULT SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & WELLBEING

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide
Purpose
To note the outcome of the Audit Commission Inspection of Strategic Housing Services

Recommendation(s)

THAT:
(a) Committee considers and notes the Audit Commission Inspection Report
on Strategic Housing Services;
(b) Key recommendations emerging from the Inspection are incorporated

into relevant Service Business Plan Action Plans
Key Points Summary

o The Inspection Report assessed that Herefordshire Council’s Strategic Housing Service as Fair
with Promising Prospects for Improvement

o The Inspection Report has made a series of recommendations designed to assist the Council to
address any weaknesses identified in the report.

Alternative Options
1 The Council could determine not to implement any of the recommendations set out in the

report and since the abolition of the Audit Commission there remains no inspection framework
for housing. However, the inspection provides a benchmark for the service from which

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Richard Gabb, Assistant Director, Homes & Communities on (01432) 261902

$dyxgvdnb.doc 22/02/10

35



improvements can be identified for inclusion in Service Business Plans.

Reasons for Recommendations

2

To enable Committee to identify and consider the identified strengths and weaknesses of
Strategic Housing Services and ensure that, where appropriate, the service takes steps to
implement the inspection recommendations.

Introduction and Background

3

During May 2010 the Audit Commission undertook an inspection of the Council’s Strategic
Housing Service. The final inspection report, attached at Appendix A, was published in July
2010.

The inspection was of the first undertaken under a new and challenging set of Housing Key
Lines of Enquiry (KLOE’s).

On 13 August 2010, Eric Pickles, the Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government (CLG) announced plans to abolish the Audit Commission. The intention is to
have new arrangements in place for auditing England's local public bodies by 2012/13.

The Audit Commission has, therefore, ceased undertaking inspections and the monitoring of
post-inspection improvement.

Key Considerations

7

The Audit Commission Inspection assessed Herefordshire Council as providing a one-star
Strategic Housing Service which is performing adequately and has promising prospects for
improvement.

The Inspection identified a range of strengths including:-

ambitions for housing which support the Council’s vision for sustainable growth

widely understood housing priorities which are championed effectively
Evidenced-based investment/priorities

Successful strategic approach to reducing homelessness

Strategic approach increasing the supply of affordable housing

Joint working with partners increasing supply of supported housing and related
services

o Easily accessible advice and information for residents

Areas of improvement included:-

e Lack of published vision setting out role of all housing
Some areas less effective in terms of engagement with stakeholders and partners
Evidence gaps in research base and engagement with some diverse groups
More strategic investment/focus on private sector role
Need to improve understanding of comparative value for money

The Inspection considered the service had promising prospects for improvement on account
of the following:-

o Strong performance against Local Area Agreement Performance indicators and

36



targets

Increased supply of affordable and affordable housing

Reduced number of households in temporary accommodation
Good performance management

Improving services through ICT investment

Procurement activity delivering service improvements and capacity
Access to a range of skills with positive skills development

In terms of barriers to improvement the following issues were identified:-

Slow progress on meeting some areas including meeting needs of gypsies and
travellers

Measuring outcomes from key projects

Maximising capacity of partners to help deliver priorities

Lack of staff resources in private sector area

10 The services included within the scope of the Audit Commission Inspection have commenced
work on a number of recommendations identified and it is proposed to incorporate
recommended improvements within service business planning processes.

Community Impact

11 None

Financial Implications

12 The recommendations resulting from the Inspection will be implemented within existing
budgets.

Legal Implications

13 There are no legal implications resulting form this report.

Risk Management

14 There are not considered to be any risks resulting from the inspection report.

Consultees

15 Not applicable.

Appendices

16 Appendix A — Inspection Report

Background Papers

o None identified.

37



38



Strategic

Housing
Services

Herefordshire Council
July 2010

VA‘ %Irﬁ%ission




Contents

Local Authority Housing Inspections
Summary

Scoring the service

Recommendations

Report

Appendix 1 — Performance indicators
Appendix 2 — Reality checks undertaken

Appendix 3 — Positive practice

40

N~ o A~ W

11
34
35
36



Local Authority Housing Inspections

Local Authority Housing
Inspections

The Audit Commission is an independent body responsible for ensuring that public
money is spent economically, efficiently and effectively and delivers
high-quality local services for the public.

Within the Audit Commission, the Housing Inspectorate inspects and monitors the
performance of a number of bodies and services. These include local authority housing
departments, local authorities administering Supporting People programmes, arms
length management organisations and housing associations. Our key lines of enquiry
(KLOES) set out the main issues which we consider when forming our judgements on
the quality of services. The KLOEs can be found on the Audit Commission’s website at
www.audit-commission.gov.uk/housing.

This inspection has been carried out by the Housing Inspectorate using powers under
section 10 of the Local Government Act 1999 and is in line with the Audit
Commission’s strategic regulation principles. In broad terms, these principles look to
minimise the burden of regulation while maximising its impact. To meet these
principles this inspection:

e is proportionate to risk and the performance of the Council;

e judges the quality of the service for service users and the value for money of the
service;

o promotes further improvements in the service; and
e has cost no more than is necessary to safeguard the public interest.

3

Herefordshire Council
41



We have assessed the strategic housing service provided by Herefordshire Council as
being a fair, one-star service that has promising prospects for improvement.

Ambitions for housing are integrated with the Council's wider vision for the county, and
are driven effectively by the Sustainable Communities Strategy. Housing priorities are
informed by the research base and, with the wider vision for the areas, are aligned to
balancing the housing market. Priorities are championed effectively. Strategies and
policies are helping the Council to deliver its housing priorities. It has outperformed its
targets for the delivery of new affordable homes, and successful prevention of
homelessness has helped to reduce the use of temporary accommodation. The range
and type of supported housing and related services has increased and better supports
previously excluded or vulnerable groups such as ex-offenders, care leavers and
rough sleepers. There are some examples of delivering improved services for fewer
resources.

However, the Council lacks a detailed, published vision for all housing in the area.
Engagement with partners, stakeholders and communities to inform and support
delivery of the vision and housing priorities is mixed. There are gaps in its research
base and strategic approach for some key areas such as provision for older people,
and the condition and role of private sector housing. The Council has been slow to
meet the accommodation needs of Gypsies and Travellers and the impact of its
approach to reducing the level of vulnerable people occupying non-decent private
sector homes is limited. The service for delivery of major adaptations is fragmented.
The Council does not yet know if the strategic housing service offers comparative
value for money.

The Council can demonstrate sustained and strong performance in priority areas for
housing over time. Procurement arrangements are delivering service improvements
and there are examples of how the service has delivered more for fewer resources.
Investment in Information and Communication Technology (ICT) is delivering service
improvements and is increasing the Council's capacity to better manage performance
and resources. Skills and training is matched to priorities, and restructuring has more
closely aligned complementary services to deliver the Council's ambitions. Most key
internal and external relationships support delivery of housing priorities.

But there are some key areas of the service which have been slow to develop or which
do not demonstrate a sustained improvement over time. The Council is not routinely
evaluating the impact or outcomes of funding decisions or strategies in relation to
priorities, and it is not yet maximising the value of partnership working.

42



We have assessed Herefordshire Council as providing a one-star strategic housing
service, which is performing adequately. It has promising prospects for improvement.
Our judgements are based on the evidence obtained during the inspection and are
outlined below.

Prospects for improvement? ‘a fair service
which has
Excellent promising
prospects for
improvement’
Promising ﬁ
A good
service?
Uncertain
Poor

Poor Fair Good Excellent
* * % * % %

We found the service to be fair because of a range of strengths which include:

ambitions for housing which support the Council's vision for sustainable growth;
housing priorities which are widely understood and championed effectively;
investment and priorities which are informed by the research base;

the Council's strategic approach is reducing homelessness and increasing the
supply of new affordable homes;

joint working with partners is increasing the type and supply of supported housing
and related services; and

it is easy for residents to access advice and information about how the Council can
help meet their housing need.

The scoring chart displays performance in two dimensions. The horizontal axis shows how good the service or function
is now, on a scale ranging from no stars for a service that is poor (at the left-hand end) to three stars for an excellent
service (right-hand end). The vertical axis shows the improvement prospects of the service, also on a four-point scale.

43



However, there are some areas which require improvement. These include:

the Council lacks an agreed, published vision which sets out the role of all housing
in the area;

engagement with partners and stakeholders is not effective in all areas;

there are some gaps in the research base and the level of engagement with and
planning for the needs of some diverse groups is underdeveloped;

the Council lacks a robust strategic focus on the role of the private sector, and the
approach to strategic commissioning is still developing; and

the comparative value for money of strategic housing services is not known.

We found the service to have promising prospects because:

there is strong performance against targets for housing within the Sustainable
Communities Strategy;

the supply of new affordable and supported housing has increased and is meeting
a wider range of needs;

fewer households are being placed in temporary accommodation,;
performance is generally well managed,;
investment in ICT is delivering improved services and increasing staff capacity;

procurement is delivering service improvements and increased capacity for
managing performance and resources; and

skills development and training is focused on priorities and the Council is able to
access to a mix of skills in housing and related services.

There are some barriers to improvement:

the Council has made slow progress in some key areas, such as meeting the
housing needs of Gypsies and Travellers, or improving waiting times for major
adaptations;

there is a lack of focus on ensuring that projects and plans are delivering their
intended outcomes;

the capacity of partners across all sectors to help deliver priorities is not being
maximised; and

a lack of staff resources is undermining the Council's ability to improve and
maintain standards in the private sector.

44



To rise to the challenge of continuous improvement, organisations need inspection
reports that offer practical pointers for improvement. Our recommendations identify the
expected benefits for both local people and the organisation. In addition, we identify
the approximate costs® and indicate the priority we place on each recommendation
and key dates for delivering these where they are considered appropriate. In this
context, the inspection team recommends that the Council shares the findings of this
report with tenants and councillors; and takes action to address all weaknesses
identified in the report. The inspection team makes the following recommendations.

Improve the focus on diversity by:

reviewing the coverage of the research base, and housing priorities and plans,
against an inclusive definition of diversity, and developing and implementing
plans to address any gaps in knowledge;

starting to proactively, and regularly, engage with existing voluntary and
specialist groups and networks which represent the interests of all groups within
the community, using the same definition as above, to inform development of,
and monitor the impact of, housing strategies, plans, policies and services;

developing a robust programme for completing Equality Impact Assessments,
and start to complete the programme involving stakeholders and service users
from the outset, for housing services, plans, policies and strategies, taking action
to address any inequality;

starting to monitor ongoing service delivery against the seven strands of diversity
and regularly review the findings, taking action to explore and address any under
or over-representation or use; and

ensuring that the delivery of new or refurbished accommodation for Gypsies and
Travellers meets needs and good practice for site design, supported by robust
engagement with the Gypsy and Traveller community throughout.

The expected benefits of this recommendation are:

strategies, plans and services are informed by, and meet the needs of, all groups
within the community; and

increased capacity to meet the needs of people who may be unwilling to engage
with formal services.

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with low costs. This
should be implemented by January 2011.

Low cost is defined as less than 1 per cent of the annual service cost, medium cost is between 1 and 5 per cent and
high cost is over 5 per cent.

45



Strengthen the approach to developing and delivering the housing vision and
priorities by:
presenting partners and stakeholders from across all housing tenures with an
up-to-date picture of the housing and wider corporate research base, from which
they can challenge assumptions and develop a housing vision and priorities for
the area;

reviewing and evaluating opportunities to extend the scope of the Housing
Partnership to include representation from the voluntary sector and private
sector, and make more effective use of the partnership, and its members'
resources, to deliver the housing priorities for the area; and

reviewing the capacity of the service, and its partnership arrangements, to
deliver the Council's ambitions and future plans for housing growth.

The expected benefits of this recommendation are:

a vision for housing which is challenging and has been developed using the
knowledge and experience of partners who are effectively signed up to helping the
Council deliver its ambitions; and

the capacity of the service and partners is matched to delivery of housing priorities
and wider ambitions.

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with low costs. This
should be implemented by October 2010.

Improve performance management by:

addressing gaps in internal and external agreements which govern joint or
shared working arrangements and ensure that all agreements have clear targets
for delivery which are regularly monitored and reported, taking action to address
any areas of underperformance;

start to routinely evaluate the impact of projects, policies, plans and strategies to
determine if they are delivering intended outcomes, and taking appropriate action
where they are not; and

begin collecting service — user feedback across all areas of the strategic housing
service, taking action quickly to correct dissatisfaction or underperformance, and
use this information to diagnose and address any causes of repeated service
failure.

46



The expected benefits of this recommendation are:

joint agreements to deliver services or referrals work effectively;
risks to delivery of priorities are reduced; and
services meet the needs of residents.

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with low costs. This
should be implemented by October 2010.

Improve the focus on value for money within the service by:

exploring how the costs, quality and performance of each element of the
strategic housing service compares to others, taking account of policy choices
and context, and taking action to address areas of poor comparative
performance;

tracking the impact of value for money decisions over time;

routinely evaluating the impact of funding decisions to ensure that resources are
being used effectively to deliver agreed priorities and outcomes; and

evaluating the value for money and capacity for sharing resources within
partnership arrangements to deliver housing and wider priorities.

The expected benefits of this recommendation are:

funding decisions and resource allocations are delivering the intended outcomes;
services provide improved value for money; and
opportunities to share resources to deliver priorities are maximised.

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with medium costs.
This should be implemented by March 2011.

Improve the focus on the quality of existing homes and neighbourhoods by:

improving the strategic focus on the role of private sector housing in contributing
to sustainable communities, and reviewing the capacity of this service to ensure
it is aligned to delivery of wider ambitions for decent homes, and supporting
independent living; and

reviewing, with partners, the effectiveness of the choice based lettings scheme;
and

implementing a proactive approach to identifying and licensing Houses in
Multiple Occupation.

47



The expected benefits of this recommendation are:

the scale and impact of intervention in this sector matches the Council's ambitions
and its role in the housing market; and

risks to vulnerable people are minimised.

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with medium costs.
This should be implemented by January 2011.

Improve the focus on meeting the needs of vulnerable people by:

completing a whole service review for the provision of major aids and
adaptations, from point of enquiry through to completion of works, using
recognised good practice within the housing and health sectors;

ensuring that the review above takes into account funding and performance
management arrangements, including performance reporting, to reflect good
practice; and

putting the review findings into practice.
The expected benefit of this recommendation is:

an effective service for major adaptations with practices and waiting times which
reflect good practice.

The implementation of this recommendation will have high impact with low costs. This
should be implemented by March 2011.

We would like to thank the staff of Herefordshire Council who made us welcome and
who met our requests efficiently and courteously.

Dates of Inspection: 24 — 28 May 2010.

48



Herefordshire is a predominantly rural county. It is situated in the south west corner of
the West Midlands region, bordering Wales. Over half of its residents live in rural
areas, and more of its residents live in very rural areas than any other county in
England.

The city of Hereford, in the middle of the county, is the centre for most facilities. Just
over one third of the population lives in the City, with approximately one fifth living in
five market towns. Recently, rural areas and market towns have accounted for more of
the county's population growth than the City.

The population is growing more slowly than the regional and national average. The
proportion of older people is high, and is growing fast. The numbers of children and
younger people are decreasing. The level of growth in numbers of working age people
is lower than the national average.

The county has a small but growing Black and Minority Ethnic Community (BME). It
has also experienced growth in the number of migrant workers from European Union
countries, with many providing seasonal agricultural labour.

The county has a relatively high employment rate compared to regional and national
levels, but earnings are lower. Levels of self employment and part time working are
relatively high. Recently there has been an increase in unemployment levels, and
increasing numbers of people, particularly in rural areas, seeking debt advice.

Many people find it expensive to buy or rent a home, and the county has the worst
affordability ratio in the West Midlands. In 2008, the owner occupied sector made up
71.6 per cent of the housing stock (higher than average), followed by 15.3 per cent
affordable homes (lower than average) and 13.1 per cent homes for private rent
(higher than average).

In 2005, an estimated one third of all homes in the county failed to meet the Decent
Homes Standard, most of which were privately owned or rented homes. Most are rural,
older properties which are hard to heat and keep warm.

Herefordshire Council works in partnership with NHS Herefordshire to deliver services
in the county. There are several shared services, a joint management board, and one
chief executive.

The Council comprises 58 elected members. The overall political composition is: 31
Conservative councillors, 14 Herefordshire Independent councillors, 9 Liberal
Democrat councillors, 2 Labour councillors and 2 Herefordshire Alliance councillors.

49



The service reports to two cabinet members — the cabinet member for adult social care
and wellbeing, and the cabinet member for environment and strategic housing. The
service is scrutinised by the adult social care and strategic housing scrutiny committee.
There are two member champions for the service. Their roles focus on homelessness,
and energy efficiency and affordable warmth, respectively.

The strategic housing service is part of the Council's Regeneration Directorate. The
service is responsible for housing policy and strategy, enabling delivery of new
affordable homes, housing advice and homelessness, administering the county wide
choice based lettings scheme, and private sector housing. The Council transferred its
housing stock to Herefordshire Housing Ltd in 2002.

Is there an overarching and shared vision for housing which supports wider
ambitions for the community and is championed effectively?

This is an area where the Council is performing well. Housing is integrated into the
Council's ambitions and wider plans for sustainable growth within the county. There
has been a sustained focus on key housing issues, and strong performance against
targets in those areas. Councillors champion housing issues effectively, and the
Council works with partners to promote understanding and gain agreement for key
housing priorities and projects. Positive work is underway to translate the Sustainable
Communities Strategy into community based plans for delivery. However, the Council
lacks an agreed, detailed vision for all housing within the area.

The Sustainable Communities Strategy provides clear direction for housing within the
county. In 2009, the State of Herefordshire report identified key housing issues as: an
increase in homelessness following years of decline, low wages compared to house
prices, high demand for social housing across the county and for all types of housing in
Hereford, an ageing population, and that one third of homes in the county did not meet
the Decent Homes Standard. The Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) and
associated Local Area Agreement (LAA) targets focused on delivering new affordable
homes, and reducing the use of temporary accommodation. The Council can
demonstrate a sustained focus on these areas, and, despite the difficulties posed by
economic downturn, it has outperformed its targets.

The Council has a good understanding of the scale of the challenge it faces to balance
the housing market. Housing — in terms of quality and supply — is recognised as being
critical to delivering the Council's wider ambitions for economic growth and
sustainability, and a top priority for residents. Recognising that the mismatch between
wage levels and supply is a barrier to delivering those ambitions, the Council has,
within its draft strategic planning framework, committed to delivering 18,000 new
homes by 2026 — with at least one third of these to be affordable. This represents a
step change in provision within the county to meet existing and emerging housing
need, linked to wider ambitions.

Targets were re-negotiated and agreed with Government Office for the West Midlands in 2008/09.

50



Ambitions for housing are strongly aligned to wider objectives. The regional themes of
urban regeneration and rural renaissance are strongly reflected in the SCS, and
developing core strategy, which provides the framework for delivery. Plans to support
development within the core strategy are focusing on Hereford as a hub to deliver the
growth point and regeneration focus, and a second plan is focusing more widely on the
market towns and rural areas, to develop and sustain rural communities. Cutting
across both plans are the themes of economic development, sustainability and tackling
climate change. This approach means that housing is effectively linked to planning for
socio-economic, transport and environmental issues, helping to support delivery of
sustainable communities.

Plans to deliver significant levels of new homes in Hereford are effectively integrated
with the Council's ambitions for economic growth and sustainability. The housing
element of the wider regeneration and growth planned for the City focuses on the
Edgar Street Grid project, with the aim of delivering 800 new homes. Planning
permissions for infrastructure to release land for building have been approved, and the
Council has released several of its own land holdings to support the project. Key
national and regional partners are working effectively with the Council to progress the
scheme, which aims to double the levels of housing delivery previously achieved within
the City.

The Council works well with partners and stakeholders to build support for difficult
decisions or policies. For example, it has worked closely with parish councils for some
years to ensure that any local concerns about new affordable homes, particularly on
rural exception sites, are allayed and creditable numbers of new homes have been
delivered as a result. More recently it has, despite local opposition, granted planning
permission for new infrastructure to enable housing development in key areas of the
City, because without this, its wider plans for housing growth as part of the City's
regeneration and would stall. This helps to remove any barriers to progressing the
Council's aims.

Elected members are active advocates for housing and champion the housing needs
of the county effectively. At regional level, for example, their involvement helped to
ensure that rural housing growth and sustainability were recognised within the regional
strategies. They opted for housing growth above the levels recommended by the
Regional Spatial Strategy in order to be able to deliver the Council's longer term
ambitions. At a more operational level, members provide challenge in their scrutiny
and champion roles, resulting in a more streamlined housing advice service for
customers.

51



Although it has clear ambitions for housing, the Council currently lacks a clear vision
for the role of all housing within the area. The SCS, and associated targets within the
LAA which provide the overall vision for the area, focus largely on new supply, and
tackling homelessness. There is a lack of clarity about the role of other housing
tenures, and providers, in helping to deliver sustainable communities. This is important
where delivery of wider plans, such as increasing the level of education on offer, may
impact on the nature of the housing market as it responds to changing patterns of
demand. The Council is currently consulting on a refresh of its previous housing
strategy while it is developing a sub-regional housing strategy. Without an agreed,
published vision for all types of housing, some partners may not be clear about how
different parts of the housing sector contribute to delivering the Council's ambitions.

Similarly, it is not clear how effectively the housing and support needs of different parts
of the community are being planned for. Some elements of key strategic documents,
such as the SCS and the emerging core strategy, refer to specific groups such as
Gypsies and Travellers, young people with disabilities, and older people. Other groups
are referred to in different plans, such as the emerging housing plan for people with
mental ill health, or provision for ex-offenders which is referred to in the homelessness
strategy. Some groups, such as BME Groups, are not mentioned at all in research
about housing needs, or in key documents relating to housing. The lack of a single,
integrated approach which brings together the needs of all groups, and progress of
existing commitments, poses a risk that the needs of some people will be overlooked.

How effectively is partnership working and community consultation shaping,
and supporting delivery of, the strategic approach to housing?

This is an area where the Council is performing adequately. The Council has some
well developed relationships at local, regional and national level, but is not effectively
engaging with local housing partners to shape and deliver housing priorities. It is
undertaking some positive work with local communities, but there is a lack of focus on
understanding and planning for the needs of vulnerable and diverse groups.

The Council has a strong focus on understanding and meeting the needs of
communities at a more local level in order to promote sustainability. It has brought
together the themes of improving value for money, improved access to services, and
sustaining rural communities and the voluntary sector, within its developing approach
to Total Place.” Six local pilots have recently been completed. It is intending to build on
this further through the emerging core strategy, supported by the development of six
local housing market area assessments. Although this work is developing, it
demonstrates a positive approach to engaging residents at a local level to shape the
vision for their communities.

Total Place is a new initiative led by the Leadership Centre for Local Government. Herefordshire is one of 13 pilot
areas. The aim is for all local public services in an area to work together to deliver improved services at a lower cost.

52



The Council has successfully captured a wide range of views and feedback from
stakeholders and the community to inform its approach to place shaping. Informed by
the priorities within the Sustainable Communities Strategy, the place shaping
consultation builds on the previous options consultations completed as part of the
emerging Local Development Framework. A number of different engagement methods,
including roadshows and postal questionnaires, has generated over 5,000 responses,
from a wide range of organisations, and residents. Although the impact of this work is
not yet apparent, the level of responses is high compared to others and provides the
Council with a firm basis on which to develop its plans.

There are well developed arrangements for engaging with communities to promote
understanding of, and help inform, delivery of new affordable homes. A rolling
programme of rural housing needs surveys is supported by roadshow events for local
communities, attended by members, officers and more recently, developer partners.
The Council has also been working for many years with parish councils to develop
their understanding of rural housing needs. This is helping to generate support for
delivery of new affordable homes, particularly in rural areas.

The Council has well developed relationships with key external organisations. Close
working with the Environment Agency ensured that potential barriers to delivery of the
Growth Point were identified early on in the masterplanning stage, and were dealt with
quickly. At a local level, this has translated into support and advice on managing risks
to delivery of individual schemes. Close working with the Homes and Communities
Agency also enabled the Council to secure additional funding to acquire homes from
developers in addition to the planning gain already achieved on two sites. This helps
the Council to safeguard delivery of its key strategic housing and regeneration plans
and projects.

Key regional partners and organisations have a good understanding of what the
Council is trying to achieve, and how it fits with regional priorities. Members and
officers play an active role in regional networks and structures, and have influenced
the regional agenda, which in turn supports the local vision. For example, in its
influencing role, the Council was able to help ensure that rural housing became a
priority, alongside urban regeneration, within the regional housing strategy.
Involvement regionally has also helped to secure funding for key strategic projects,
such as housing provision within the regeneration scheme for Hereford. This has
increased the Council's ability to call upon the experience, and resources, of regional
partners to help deliver its plans.

Positive relationships with local partners are also helping to deliver priorities. Examples
include working with development partners to maintain delivery of new affordable
homes in the downturn; with registered providers to provide early notification of
potential homelessness cases, and working with the police, fire service, health and
social care colleagues to tackle poor housing standards in the private sector.
Registered providers have also worked closely with the Council to support and develop
schemes for temporary social housing, and new models of provision for vulnerable
people.

53



However, the approach to working with partners and stakeholders to develop a
housing vision and related priorities is not fully robust. The Council recently consulted
partners on a refresh of the previous housing strategy to provide a framework until
2011/12, when it aims to have a sub-regional housing strategy in place. However,
consultation was limited to asking partners and stakeholders to comment on a draft
vision and priorities which mirrored those of the previous strategy, rather than to
develop a vision and priorities from their experience, particularly in a changing market.
This was because the research base highlighted the same issues, but in practice, key
parts of the research base had not been updated, and it does not provide an
up-to-date picture of the housing market now, or in the future. This approach offered
little opportunity to challenge and actively shape a vision for housing in the local area.

Ongoing engagement mechanisms with local housing partners are not well integrated
or focused on delivery of strategic priorities. Housing is acknowledged as being critical
to all of the theme areas within the Sustainable Communities Strategy, but is only
specifically referenced in two of the six themes, although housing has representation
on three of the theme groups. The membership of the Housing Partnership, a sub
group of the LSP's Stronger Communities theme group, is limited to registered
providers, with separate groups for developers, private landlords, and homelessness
partners. The Partnership does not have a work plan, and the functions of its
sub-groups are, with the exception of the developer sub-group, largely limited to
information sharing. As a result, the Council is missing opportunities to harness the
capacity of partners to deliver shared aims.

The draft housing strategy vision refers to meeting the needs of a diverse community,
but the Council has not actively sought the views of vulnerable or minority groups, or
associated voluntary organisations or networks, on what those needs are. There are
some examples of targeted engagement in relation to plans for regeneration of the
City, such as consultation with a local disability network, and engaging with young
people to reflect their views and needs in the homelessness strategy. However, there
are few further examples. This is a missed opportunity to ensure that the development
of the housing vision and priorities are informed by engagement with groups of people
who are vulnerable or at risk of disadvantage.

54



Is there an up-to-date understanding of the housing market and housing
conditions, socio-economic data and the broader policy context which informs
the housing vision and strategic decision making?

This is an area where the Council is performing adequately. It uses intelligence about
the housing market to influence and inform regional and local priorities and decision
making. Key pieces of research are supporting delivery of its priorities, and are helping
to meet the needs of some groups at risk of disadvantage. However, its approach to
sub-regional and local interventions is still developing and it lacks information about
the needs of all groups within the community. It does not have an up to date picture of
the role and condition of the private sector.

Intelligence about the housing market is used effectively to inform and influence the
Council's, and wider organisations, priorities and strategies. A key element of the
research base is a sub-regional strategic housing market assessment completed in
2008. This highlighted the mismatch between local wages and affordability, and the
prevalence of older, rural housing stock in the private sector which is hard to heat and
keep warm. This directly informed the 2005-2008 housing strategy, corporate priorities,
affordable warmth strategy and the Sustainable Communities Strategy. It has helped to
gain the support of partners for shared priorities, for example, raising the profile of rural
housing need within regional strategies, and involving health partners in tackling fuel
poverty.

Housing and development plans are informed by regularly updated information on land
availability. The Council has recognised the importance of new supply in rural areas for
a long time, and has a well-established programme of rolling housing needs
assessments in market towns and smaller settlements. In addition, a Strategic Housing
Land Availability Assessment provides the Council with a picture of potential sites for
new housing between 2009 and 2026, broken down into five-year blocks of deliverable
sites, and those with some constraints. It confirms that there are sites which in total
could accommodate over 25,000 homes to 2026, and that there are sufficient
deliverable sites to support the City as a designated growth point. This is directly
informing, and supporting, the type and scale of the Council's planned interventions
and ambitions.

In addition to research which identifies potential locations, the Council also undertakes
regular reviews to determine what type of new affordable housing is needed. It has
completed specific research into demand for key worker housing, and regularly tests
the affordability levels of non-rented affordable housing options in relation to local
employment patterns and wages. This has been used to inform the type of homes
provided through new supply, for example, over the last three years the proportion of
new affordable homes for rent has increased as open market affordability has
decreased. This approach enables the Council to respond effectively to changing
patterns of need and affordability.

55



Sharing data within the Council is providing a joined-up approach to tackling empty
homes. Colleagues in different parts of the housing service, along with those in
revenues and benefits, are working together to identify and analyse the location, type
and profile of empty homes on a quarterly basis. This enables the housing service to
target advice or enforcement action as appropriate, but with a focus on encouraging
owners to improve their properties, with funding linked to the use of the property as
rented affordable housing or temporary accommodation. This is helping to increase the
supply of good quality affordable homes.

Specific research is helping to ensure that housing priorities reflect the needs of some
disadvantaged groups. Research completed jointly by the Council and the Primary
Care Trust highlighted the need for a shared approach between mental health and
learning disability services and housing need. The ageing profile of the county and key
pieces of research, such as the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, highlighted the
need to reduce the level of residential care and promote enablement and independent
living. The review of the homelessness strategy also highlighted a need for more
provision for care leavers and ex-offenders. The results of this research are evident in
the new provision of housing and related support services to meet these needs.

However, the research base is not always being used effectively to make sure that the
needs of all diverse groups are understood. For example, key research documents
identify an increase in the county's BME community, but there has been no targeted
engagement to explore housing needs across BME communities. There are gaps in
the coverage of commissioning plans, for example, the plan for older people is not yet
complete. Operational monitoring of service delivery is also failing to capture take up
across the different groups. As a result, the Council cannot be sure that its housing
plans and services are meeting the needs of all parts of the community.

Analysis of issues at levels above and below the county level is developing, but is not
yet complete. Sub-regional work has included shared research relating to the housing
market and the needs of Gypsies and Travellers, but there is currently no assessment
of how cross-boundary planning for provision may assist in delivery. The Council is
also undertaking some positive work to understand the needs and aspirations of
localities, supported by community consultation for the Local Development Framework.
However, this work is not yet complete, and the Council's ability to target and shape
strategic housing services at a sub-regional and local level is not fully developed.

The Council does not have an up-to-date picture of the private sector housing market.
It undertook a stock condition survey of the sector in 2005, and is planning a further
survey this year. It has used the 2005 information to inform priorities, for example, the
Council's strategic focus on affordable warmth, and has targeted interventions towards
improving the energy efficiency of homes which are hard to heat. However, it has not
completed follow up surveys on completion of works to assess the impact of its
assistance, or enforcement. It is not sufficiently proactive in its approach to Houses in
Multiple Occupation, although it recognises that the number of migrant workers poses
challenges in the private rented sector. As a result, it is not able to base priorities for
this sector, for example, in the draft housing strategy, upon a realistic understanding of
the condition, pressures and opportunities that it offers.

56



Are there robust housing and planning strategies and policies which support
delivery of housing priorities?

This is an area where the Council is performing adequately. Planning policies are
supporting delivery of new market and affordable homes. The strategy for
homelessness is preventing increasing numbers of people from becoming homeless.
However, the Council's approach to strategic commissioning and sub-regional working
is still developing, and there are weaknesses in its approach to the private sector and
equality and diversity.

Planning policy supports delivery of sustainable communities. The Council's planning
principles reflect the regional and local aims for urban growth and regeneration and
sustaining rural communities by setting out a development hierarchy — from urban
settings, to market towns, to rural areas — with growth in market towns aligned to
meeting local housing need, or supporting local services.

The housing stock in the county is predominantly owner occupied, and so the Council
has a strong focus on maximising the delivery of new affordable homes alongside
delivery of new market housing. Site allocations set out requirements for developers in
terms of the location and numbers of new homes required, and the number of
affordable homes within each scheme. Thresholds are determined for each site,
informed by surveys of housing need, and for windfall sites at 35 per cent affordable
provision on rural sites of six or more units, and on urban sites of 15 or more units.
Development briefs and Supplementary Planning Documents for planning obligations
and affordable housing also help to maximise contributions. For the last three years,
the Council has exceeded or achieved its aim of ensuring that 35 per cent of new
homes are affordable.

Policies are also helping to meet rural housing need. The Council's rural exceptions
policy is supported by a rolling programme of housing needs surveys, and the Council
has worked with parish councils for many years to discuss how new housing can help
to meet local needs. The number of homes delivered this way is small, but has
increased each year, for example, from 6 in 2007/08 to 11 in 2009/10. In the last three
years, 27 new affordable homes have been delivered in this way and, through the
allocations policy, will meet the needs of local people in perpetuity.

The Council has an effective strategic approach to tackling homelessness. It reviewed
its strategy in 2008 This included a wide ranging review of service data, including
housing demand and condition, positive practice and national guidance, intelligence
from wider services such as Supporting People and social care, and included
consultation with service users, voluntary organisations and housing partners. The
review identified gaps in service provision for key groups at risk of homelessness and
has resulted in the delivery of new support services, for example, mediation services
for young people, and support for people who misuse drugs and alcohol. Risk based
service provision and support is helping to prevent homelessness, and is contributing
to the Council's priority of reducing the number of households in temporary
accommodation.

57



Strategic commissioning arrangements are still developing. The Council is developing
its approach through a draft strategy for commissioning housing related support
following the removal of the ring fence for Supporting People grant in April 2010. The
strategy is not yet complete, and although it has a supporting action plan, it lacks
confirmed dates for many actions, including, for example, completing a gap analysis of
need and provision. The Council cannot yet be sure that its current strategies and
plans are effectively capturing known and emerging needs.

The Council lacks an effective strategic focus on the private sector. There is no private
sector housing strategy, although one is planned for development during 2010. A
strategy for tackling empty homes was refreshed in 2010 following a five-year gap from
the end of the previous strategy, during which time the headline level of empty homes
had not significantly decreased. The private sector, and the contribution it makes, is
not mentioned in the Sustainable Communities Strategy except in relation to delivery of
affordable warmth. This is an area which has had a strong focus within the Council but
has had limited impact on the level of non-decent homes occupied by vulnerable
people, an issue identified by the Strategic Housing Market Assessment.

Fifty-two per cent of non decent homes in the private sector were occupied by
vulnerable people in 2009/10, compared to 59 per cent in 2006/07.

Work with partners to develop a sub-regional housing strategy is underway, but
progress is slower than the Council anticipated. The Council has worked with
sub-regional partners to commission housing research, such as the Strategic Housing
Market Assessment, but aims within the 2005-2008 housing strategy to develop a joint
approach to homelessness and a sub-regional affordable housing strategy have not
been achieved. The Council is currently working closely with partners and
stakeholders, supported by members and registered providers, to develop its
sub-regional approach, and it has started comparing strategic aims and priorities.
However, this reflects the early stage that this work is at, and as a result, there are no
outcomes yet from a shared strategic approach.

The approach to undertaking equality impact assessments is having only a limited
impact on service provision. Assessments for key areas of service, such as housing
development, homelessness and private sector housing, have been completed.
However, only the assessment for the Home Point service has resulted in any change
to practice or provision. The latter resulted in video guides for the service being made
available in community languages. There are key gaps in what has been assessed, for
example, the local connection policy, or main strategic documents. The Council cannot
demonstrate that it has robustly identified and tackled any inequality in service
provision as a result.

58



Are the right skills and tools in place to ensure effective delivery of housing
priorities?

This is an area where the Council is performing well. New structures reflect the role of
housing in delivering wider ambitions. Investment in ICT, skills and knowledge is
matched to priorities. However, there are some operational gaps in partnership
working and capacity.

Restructuring has effectively aligned services towards delivery of strategic priorities.
Housing, planning, economic development and regeneration, and transportation were
all brought together into the same directorate in 2008, with the aim of focusing
resources on the 'live, work, visit' focus of the Sustainable Communities Strategy. This
has resulted in some positive joint working and approaches, for example, joint
pre-application meetings for delivery of new affordable homes. The planning service
has been restructured to increase the level of delegated decisions, helping members to
focus on strategic applications, for example, relating to delivery of the growth point.

The Council deploys skills and staff resources flexibly. Recognising that the growth
point and regeneration require a step change in delivery, it has set up a new team to
focus on planning, co-ordination, and delivery for key projects, such as developing the
Hereford Action Plan. It has also seconded a planning officer into the organisation
which manages the Edgar Street Grid regeneration scheme, and allocated a second
officer to focus on dealing with applications for that scheme. This provides additional
capacity focused on strategic projects, and also enables staff to develop their skills in a
more complex environment.

Skills development, knowledge sharing and training opportunities are widely available
to and from the service. Staff are encouraged to develop their own knowledge and
skills, for example, through sponsored professional development, as part of their
appraisal and learning plans. Secondments are also used to develop the range of skills
that is available to the Council. Staff provide a number of training and learning
opportunities for members and parishes. Staff and members we saw are committed to
housing plans and priorities, and are knowledgeable about the inter-relationship with
other aspects of the Council's vision.

Investment in ICT is resulting in more streamlined working processes. The service has
benefited from the corporate transformation programme, which aims to deliver
improved value for money and more streamlined services for customers through better
use of technology. Examples include the new homelessness system, which has
reduced manual performance data collection and improved ways of working for front
line staff. Other improvements include providing access to specialist software to trace
the owners of empty homes, reducing the time and costs spent using an external
tracing agency. Better use is made of staff time as a result.

59



The quality of external partnership working is mixed. The Council has well developed
strategic and operational relationships with national and regional organisations, for
example, with the Environment Agency, which helps to safeguard the delivery of key
schemes and projects. It also has well developed operational relationships with local
partners, such as registered providers and the police, where joint working is helping to
reduce the risk of homelessness for vulnerable people. Examples include developing
the emergency assistance service for migrant rough sleepers, and early warnings for
eviction. However, the Housing Partnership is not being maximised as a means of
challenging or developing strategic and operational responses to delivering the
Council's vision for the area.

Working arrangements across Council services are broadly aligned to housing
services, but are not effective across all services. Teams within housing work well
together to prevent homelessness. They also work closely with benefits, and social
services, but arrangements are less effective in terms of communication and caseload
management with environmental health. Joint working between housing and health
colleagues is positive in relation to referrals and delivery for minor repairs and
adaptations, but is less effective for delivery of major adaptations in terms of workload
planning between the services. Both impact on the ability of the Council's private
sector housing team — which has limited staff resources — to deliver services
effectively.

The Council has not yet assessed the capacity and skills within the service to deliver
its future plans. This work is planned following the finalisation of a restructure of
Council services. It has completed a workforce planning assessment of the service for
current levels of service provision, but this failed to identify that there is insufficient
staffing capacity to deliver a proactive approach to inspecting and maintaining
standards in the private sector. The Council does not yet know if it has the right level
and range of resources in place to deliver planned step changes in delivery, and
improved services which meet needs now and in the future.

Are arrangements in place to keep delivery of housing priorities on track and
promote a culture of continuous improvement?

The Council is performing adequately in this area. It has a clear framework for
managing performance which is aligned to priorities. It uses learning to improve its
services, and its plans address key weaknesses. However, risks are not always
managed effectively, and the Council is not routinely assessing whether outcomes are
being delivered as intended. The use of feedback from customers is limited.

There are strong links between the vision for the county, and priorities for action
identified within the service. The SCS and the Council's corporate priorities, in the
absence of a current housing strategy, provide a clear framework for service to work
within. The service plan sets out actions and timescales for the coming year against
each of the themes within the SCS. Although housing is not referred to as a specific
priority in each theme, there is a strong focus within the service on delivering against
its specific targets, and contributing to the wider vision for the area

60



Performance targets are aligned to the delivery of strategic priorities, and are
monitored effectively. Reports are tailored appropriately to different levels of the
organisation, ranging from high level national indicators at corporate and LSP level, to
a wide range of national and local indicators at service and Housing Partnership level.
Regular exception reporting and commentary enables the Council, and partners, to
identify and correct any areas of underperformance. A positive example is the way the
Council and its development partners worked together to review and accelerate
schemes within the forward plan to achieve their LAA delivery target. As a result of this
approach, the Council and partners are better placed to work together to deliver their
aims.

The Council has strengthened its approach to keeping planned actions on track. It has
invested in dedicated performance management software, which brings together
service plans and targets into one system. The system highlights exceptions, and
requires commentary for where performance is not meeting target. The Council has
also invested to develop a culture of challenge to support its approach, for example,
through its 'change champions' programme. These are positive developments, and
reflect perceptions from external organisations that the Council is more focused on
doing what it says it will do.

The Council actively seeks to learn from others to improve its services. There are
numerous examples within the service of where learning from high performing
organisations and good practice has been tailored and implemented to improve
services. Examples include using video guides to explain the choice based lettings
system to applicants, and exploring the use of assistive technology for people with
dementia. This is resulting in high levels of self awareness, which is helping to inform
service improvement plans.

Risk management processes are embedded at different levels, but are not always
effective. Service level risks are identified and reviewed regularly, and escalated where
mitigation measures are required at a corporate level. Poor performance in delivery of
grant funded major adaptations is an example of where a service risk was escalated.
This resulted in additional funding to clear a backlog and provide additional staffing
resources for the service, but did not robustly tackle the fragmented nature of service
delivery, which had contributed to the problems. As a result, assurance that the same
issues will not occur again is limited.

The service is not sufficiently focused on evaluating the impact of projects,
partnerships and services which benefit from Council investment. There are some
positive examples, such as evaluation of the Herefordshire Supported Housing for
Young People Project (SHYPP) which is raising awareness of housing options among
young people. However, there are also several examples where monitoring and
evaluation are not routine, or are absent. Examples include the choice based lettings
scheme, which has not been robustly reviewed with partners since it was implemented
in 2002, mediation and debt advice, and interventions in private sector housing. The
partnership agreement with developers was reviewed recently, but after a gap of
several years during which it had not been monitored at all. The service cannot be sure
that all of its activities are effective or delivering their intended outcomes as a result.

61



The collection and use of feedback from service users is limited. There is no clear
strategic approach to what should be collected, how or when. Where information is
being routinely collected, for example, for Home Improvement Agency services, the
service can demonstrate how it has taken action to address areas of dissatisfaction.
However, several key areas of service are not collecting any information at all, for
example, on new homes and only limited customer feedback is collected for housing
advice and homelessness services. Where postal surveys are being used on a regular
basis, they are not capturing comprehensive customer profile information. As a result,
the service is missing opportunities to improve the quality of services it provides, and
to ensure that services are provided fairly and consistently to all parts of the
community.

Does the council plan and manage its finances and other resources to support
the effective delivery of its strategic housing priorities and achieve value for
money?

This is an area where performance is adequate. The Council attracts external
investment to support its own, and directs resources to priorities, although it is not
assessing the impact of funding decisions on delivery of its priorities. There are some
examples of improving value for money within the service, but comparative work is
underdeveloped.

Resources are effectively directed towards the delivery of priorities. Examples include
the local mortgage rescue scheme and investment to develop the housing options
service. Council owned assets are used to support delivery of new affordable homes,
and although commuted sums are rarely accepted, they are also used to support
housing delivery, for example, supported housing. Funding and resources are recycled
— for example, the use of loans rather than grants for improvements to private sector
housing, and use of planning and delivery grant to fund key pieces of the research
base.

The Council successfully attracts external investment to support its aims. Examples
include £4.6 million from the Department of Health to deliver the county's first extra
care scheme and £7.6 million from the Homes and Communities Agency between
2007/08 and 2009/10 to support delivery of affordable homes, which relied on effective
support from partners. The also placed a successful bid for MIRA” funding to provide
an emergency housing support service for migrants who do not qualify for other
assistance.

There is a strong corporate focus on value for money which is reflected in the service.
Requirements to identify cost savings of 15 per cent over three years means that the
service has regularly reviewed the strategic relevance of what it does, and whether it
can deliver the same or more within reducing resources. Examples include using staff
to deliver the service previously provided by the Rural Housing Enabler, and
investment in adaptations which can be recycled, such as ramps, and more recently, a
modular extension to a house. This is supported by a focus within the performance
management framework to make sure that performance improves at the same time as
resources reduce. This is helping the Council to make better use of its resources.

MIRA — migration and integration in rural areas. Funding for the project has come from the Migration Impact Fund, a
national fund which comes from the levy migrants pay to the government when they enter the country.

62



Planning processes are used to support value for money in the delivery of strategic
housing objectives. Development briefs are produced for all development where the
Council has a direct interest. These have ensured that suitable infrastructure and
community facilities are provided on-site in these areas. Section 106 agreements have
been used on specific sites where infrastructure requirements can be evidenced, and
the number of new affordable homes delivered as a result has increased.

The Council's partnership arrangements with developer registered providers is focused
on providing value for money. Following selection, the Council negotiated and agreed
the allocation of a lead registered provider to a specific geographical area, which
avoids price rises through competition for the same site. The allocations also matched
the registered provider’s concentrations of managed homes. This enables them to gain
economies of scale in their activities and enables the Council to work more efficiently
with the selected group of partner developers.

However, the Council's understanding of whether strategic housing services offer value
for money is underdeveloped. Work to explore how costs, performance and service
quality compare to others, or over time, is at an early stage. The Council has joined a
service specific benchmarking group, although this is yet to report any results. It is also
developing an in-house matrix to better understand the relationship between budget
spend and outputs, but it is too early to see any outcomes from this. As a result, it
cannot yet demonstrate that its services offer value for money.

The impact of funding decisions in relation to delivery of priorities is not routinely
captured. For example, the Council has invested resources in affordable warmth, and
can demonstrate the number of actions it has taken to support this through private
sector housing interventions, but it cannot demonstrate the impact that these
interventions have actually had on heating costs for vulnerable residents, or the
average energy efficiency rating of the housing stock. This limits the Councils ability to
evaluate whether resource levels are appropriate to deliver key housing priorities and
targets.

Partnerships have not been evaluated in relation to resources and value for money.
The Council has not completed a review of internal and external partnerships to
assess how effectively they are helping to deliver shared priorities for housing. There is
no agreed work plan for the housing partnership, and there are examples where
existing strategies and targets, for example, for affordable warmth, have not been
viewed as an opportunity to formally sign partners up to delivery, sharing responsibility
for targets, and identifying opportunities to share resources. There are also examples
where service level agreements and partnership agreements are not effectively
monitored or regularly reviewed. As a result, the Council is missing opportunities to
share resources and maximise the impact of partners in delivering the vision for the
area.

63



Do commissioning and procurement arrangements for strategic housing
delivery help to maximise value for money and sustainability?

This Council is performing adequately in this area. Procurement is adding value and
reducing costs. The use of council owned assets is increasing capacity for delivery of
new homes, and commissioning decisions reflect diversity and sustainability
considerations. However, commissioning arrangements are not fully effective and the
Council has not assessed the effectiveness of its partnerships.

Tailored procurement choices are helping to deliver improvements, and reduce costs.
The service uses a mix of different procurement methods to meet different needs. In
addition to standard contract tendering for known volume and value services, it has
used competitive dialogue to secure specialist skills to lead its regeneration and
housing programme. It has also recently implemented two framework agreements,
arranged through a national collaborative procurement organisation, for purchase and
installation of level access showers, and the newly implemented ICT system for
homelessness. Both of these areas had been identified as being high spend, but with
barriers to delivering improved services for customers. This approach is adding value,
as well as reducing costs.

The Council is increasing its capacity to deliver affordable homes through the use of its
own assets. It has used its own assets and land for some time to support delivery of
affordable homes, but this has been largely reactive. A recently completed strategic
review of its holdings and how they could contribute was prompted by the impact of the
economic downturn on pipeline schemes, and the housing service is now actively
working with development partners to explore options for the sites. By using its own
assets the Council is reducing the costs of developments.

Equality and diversity issues are reflected in commissioning arrangements. There are
equality schedules in all contracts which are monitored by the Council. Accreditation
schemes, for example the ACQUA scheme for voluntary sector providers, provide an
incentive to focus on diversity, as this is considered as part of the commissioning
process.

Commissioning decisions are helping to reduce the Council's environmental impact of
service provision. For example, commissioning decisions for services for people with
physical disabilities include a focus on the proximity and accessibility of transport links.
For vulnerable people who live in more isolated areas, providers promote recruitment
opportunities locally, to help reduce the carbon footprint and sustain local communities.
This is supporting the Council's aims of sustaining rural communities, and reducing
carbon emissions, whilst providing accessible services for vulnerable people.

However, partnership working to commission services is not fully effective. There are
some positive examples of joint commissioning, for example between adult social care
and strategic housing for the handyperson and Telecare services, and with probation
for the wraparound pilot for ex-offenders who are substance misusers. However, there
are gaps in the coverage of commissioning plans, and engagement with mental health
and learning disability partners is underdeveloped. The Council is missing
opportunities to maximise the impact of shared resources as a result.

64



Is new market and affordable housing offering greater choice for new and
existing households and promoting sustainable communities?

The Council is performing well in this area. It is delivering increasing numbers of new
affordable homes. Effective tools and relationships are in place to support this.
Delivery is informed by sustainability assessments, local needs and changes in market
supply. Performance in delivering new market housing has been strong. However, new
market homes do not always meet the same standard as affordable homes and
provision is not meeting the needs of Gypsies and Travellers.

The Council has performed well in enabling the provision of new housing, but recently
the numbers of new housebuilding completions has decreased. The number of
housing units completed has, until 2008/09, been increasing year-on-year. Between
2002/03 and 2007/08 a total of 4,129 new homes were built. There were 829 net
completions in 2007/08, the highest level achieved in the county since 2001. This
decreased to 689 in 2008/09, and is expected to be lower still in 2009/10.” However,
despite the impact of the economic downturn, when large assembled sites stalled, the
number of new homes in total is only 191 short of the managed target set out in the
Regional Spatial Strategy. This is important as market housing provides a key
mechanism for delivering new affordable homes, which is a housing priority for the
Council.

The Council is delivering increasing numbers of new affordable homes. In addition to
new build completions, the Council boosts the number of new affordable homes
through assistance for households to convert to low cost home ownership, for
example, through its local mortgage rescue and DIY shared ownership schemes,
providing grant assistance, and through planning gain. The total numbers of new
affordable homes has increased from 144 in 2007/08, to 208 in 2008/09.

Positive relationships with developers and funders have enabled the Council to
manage the risks to delivery of new affordable homes posed by the economic
downturn. It actively sought to support schemes in different ways. Examples include
conversion of schemes from 35 per cent to 100 per cent affordable homes; helping
registered providers to purchase windfall sites for development; and securing
additional external funding to deliver more homes on sites being delivered through the
planning system. As a result, the Council has delivered 182 new affordable homes in
2009/10, exceeding the agreed LAA target for the year.

2009/10 data is not available until the end of June 2010
This is the re-negotiated LAA target, agreed with Government Office West Midlands in 2009/10, which was revised
downwards due to the impact of the economic downturn on housing markets and construction.

65



Planning policy and the research base are used effectively to ensure that new market
and affordable homes are delivered in the right location. Adopted policies from the
Unitary Development Plan for example provide a clear hierarchy approach for all new
developments linked to an assessment of community and infrastructure sustainability.
Density policies are used to manage the delivery of numbers in different types of
development. This is further supported by ongoing Housing Needs Surveys, clear
thresholds, template section 106 agreements, pre-application meetings, and
development briefs. This helps to ensure that the Council is securing new market, and
affordable homes, of the right size and type, in the right place.

Delivery of new affordable homes is strongly aligned to local affordability levels. The
Council recognises that the type of affordable homes required may change over time,
and it uses its research base to regularly test and inform policies for delivery. For
example, the Council has moved from a target for an equal split of shared ownership
and rented homes in 2006/07, to one of 80 per cent rented homes from 2008/09. The
Council has broadly met these targets over time. The annual programme of local
Housing Needs Surveys also helps to inform negotiations at an early stage by setting
out the number, type and size of homes needed in different places. Regular testing
means that the Council is clear about its policies in negotiations at the planning stage,
and is better placed to deliver new homes which meet local needs.

New affordable homes are completed to agreed, minimum standards. Schemes are
well designed to blend in with existing communities, particularly in rural areas. New
homes are integrated with, and are indistinguishable from, new market housing. The
Council's Design Guide, supported by an adopted Supplementary Planning Document,
promotes standards which include secured by design and lifetime homes. In line with
grant requirements, it also requires compliance with level three of the Code for
Sustainable Homes as a minimum, although there are schemes where this has been
exceeded.

New market housing does not always meet the same standards as new affordable
homes. The Council has successfully ensured that new affordable homes meet lifetime
standards when delivered through the planning system, but has yet to work with
private developers to stretch standards beyond the minimum required by building
regulations, although this is planned. As a result, affordable homes are often being
completed to a higher standard in terms of sustainability than new market housing.

The Council is focused on meeting the needs of different groups of people through the
delivery of new housing. In response to need identified through the research base,
schemes to meet specialist needs include an extra care scheme, self-contained
accommodation for adults with learning disabilities combined with a floating support
scheme, self-contained accommodation for care leavers, and transitional housing for
young people moving on from Foyer schemes. The service is currently negotiating with
health and housing partners to secure the provision of private and social rented
accommodation for people with mental ill health. There are also positive examples of
where the Council has, through providing additional grant funding, built in needed
adaptations during the planning and delivery phases of new build schemes.

66



The Council also recognises the need to deliver new homes to secure the
sustainability of rural communities and retain the skills of local people. A settlement
hierarchy is used to ensure that any new development is sustainable. The Council
works closely with town and parish councils to deliver new affordable homes on
exception sites, makes use of brownfield sites such as redundant agricultural buildings,
and has recently completed a live-work scheme.

However, it has been slow to deliver any new or refurbished provision for Gypsies and
Travellers. An accommodation needs assessment was completed with sub-regional
partners in 2008. Some two years after this, the Council has still not finalised options
for new provision or refurbishment. Lack of useable or available pitches can lead to
overcrowding, poor health and education outcomes for Gypsies and Travellers, as well
as a cycle of illegal encampment or development, followed by enforcement action,
which is a relatively expensive way to spend the Council's resources.

Is there an effective approach to improving the quality and use of existing
housing and promoting sustainable neighbourhoods?

This is an area where the Council is performing adequately. It is helping people to
remain living in their homes through measures for affordable warmth and independent
living. Increasing numbers of empty homes are being brought back into use, but it is
failing to have a significant impact on the condition of the housing stock. The Council
takes enforcement action where necessary, but its approach to raising standards in the
private sector is reactive. It is taking too long to process applications for major
adaptations, and this service is fragmented. The allocations policy is not being
maximised in relation to delivering wider ambitions.

There is a strong focus on improving levels of energy efficiency and affordable warmth
within the county's housing stock. The Council offers a range of assistance, which
include the Council's Special Energy Efficiency Scheme (SEES), and Repairs on
Prescription referral programme, which make use of partner resources to support
delivery. The SEES scheme, which has helped 2,627 households since 2007/08, has
been delivered with the assistance of CERT" funding, is targeted to tackle homes
which are hard to heat and keep warm. Repairs on Prescription funds works up to
£1,000 which have been referred by health or social workers, and has helped 2,071
householders since 2007/08. This is helping to reduce the impacts on cost and health
to residents, particularly those who are vulnerable and who live in homes which are
hard to heat and keep warm.

A wide range of preventative services is helping to ensure that residents are able to
remain living independently in their own homes. They include a rapid response service
to complete minor and emergency works to prevent hospital admission, and ensure
that patients are able to return home from hospital without any delays; a low level
handyperson scheme, and delivery of minor aids and adaptations through an
integrated community equipment store. Over 6,000 households have benefited from
these services in the last three years, and this approach is helping the Council to make
best use of existing housing stock, and manage demand for other types of
accommodation.

CERT - Carbon Emission Reduction Target. This is funding which is available from utility companies.

67



However, the impact of the Council's activities, in relation to the scale of need within
the housing stock, is either limited, or not known. Performance is not meeting targets in
some key areas. For example, in 2008/09, the Council recorded that 51 homes were
made decent as a result of its intervention, against a target of over 300, although it
almost achieved its target of improving 1,200 properties. The Council is also
underperforming against its target for improving the energy efficiency of the housing
stock. In 2008/09, the percentage increase in the energy efficiency of all housing stock
since 1996 was 19.7 per cent — but the Council aimed to achieve an increase of

30 per cent by 2011. The Council cannot demonstrate that it has significantly improved
the energy efficiency or level of decent homes within the county's housing stock.

The Council cannot demonstrate that the type and scale of its interventions have had a
sustained impact on reducing the level of empty homes within the county. It has
recently refreshed its empty homes strategy, after a gap of almost five years. Between
2006/07 and 2008/09, the number of homes in the private sector which were empty for
more than six months increased from 772 to 916.

However, a good understanding of the type and location of empty homes is now
helping the Council to target its resources and bring more empty homes back into use.
It maps the type and location of empty homes across the county, and through site
visits and contact with owners, establishes the reasons why, which enables it then to
target any further action as appropriate. Action to tackle empty homes is prioritised
according to a number of criteria, which focuses on the status of the property, and also
its impact on the surrounding neighbourhood. The number of homes brought back into
use through action the Council has taken, whether formal or informal, has increased
from 145 in 2006/07 to 176 in 2009/10, and is helping to improve neighbourhoods
where empty homes have had a negative impact on the appearance of the area.

Increasingly effective joint working with partners is also now helping to make use of
empty homes to meet housing need. The Council uses its own resources in the form of
grant funding to encourage owners and landlords to bring empty properties back into
use. There is a wide range of schemes and incentives available which include
purchase and repair, temporary social housing and private sector leasing. In 2009/10,
23 empty homes were refurbished and used to provide temporary accommodation for
people who are homeless, with leasing arrangements in place for six years; 22 were
brought back into use by the private sector leasing scheme, and a further 4 properties
were purchased and repaired, adding those properties to the available social housing
in the county. This is helping to meet both short and longer term housing need.

The Council takes a balanced approach between support and enforcement to improve
housing standards. It works effectively with partners such as the fire service to inspect
properties, and since 2007/08 has assisted 20 landlords with grants totalling £157,000
to fund fire safety improvements to their properties. The Council also takes
enforcement action where necessary, for example, it has recently worked with the fire
service to jointly prosecute the owner of an unlicensed house in multiple occupation
(HMO), following an enquiry from a member of the public.

68



However, whilst it is positive that the Council takes action where it can, this highlights
the largely reactive nature of the service currently being provided. There is a lack of
capacity within the service to proactively identify and follow up potential HMOs. For
example, the Council is not yet making use of data which already exists within other
services to identify possible properties, and does not have the capacity to undertake
periodic visual surveys of the housing stock, which is important given the hidden
nature of some of the HMOs within the county. It is not always completing follow up
surveys of intervention, for example, to capture the impact on levels of decent homes
in the private sector, and did not plan effectively for the expiry of its additional licensing
scheme, with the result that almost half of the existing licenses will not be required to
be renewed under the mandatory scheme. As a result, risks to the health and safety of
occupants of HMOs are not being minimised effectively, and the impact of
interventions on the quality of the housing stock is not being robustly captured.

The extent to which the Council has explored and is maximising the use of existing
homes to meet housing need is mixed. It has recently launched an accreditation
scheme for private sector landlords, which helps to provide a focus on tackling
over-crowding for example, but lacks a proactive approach to identifying this issue
through other means. The recently revised allocations policy refers to individual
providers making provision for under-occupation of properties, but this is not part of an
agreed, county wide approach, for example, through the Housing Partnership. The
allocations policy reflects operational concerns about housing need, such as priority for
care leavers, but it fails to consider and reflect some of the Council's wider strategic
priorities, for example, linking lettings to tenancy skills development for young people.

The housing needs of vulnerable and lower income households are being met
effectively?

This is an area where the Council is performing well. Housing advice and signposting
is easily accessible. The level of homelessness is reducing due to an effective focus
on prevention. Partnership working is helping to tackle rough sleeping. The supply and
type of supported housing and services meets most needs, and has increased.
However, partnership working and commissioning arrangements are not fully effective.

Housing advice and signposting are accessible in a range of different ways. The
Council has worked hard to ensure that advice services extend into the rural areas,
through the offer of home visits and housing advice surgeries in the market towns, in
addition to the main service provided in the City centre. There is a wide range of
information on the Council's website, and publicity about different services and the help
available, for example, for owners of empty homes, or poor condition homes in the
private sector, is targeted appropriately. Applicants are able to bid for housing through
the HomePoint scheme in a number of ways, including telephone and text messaging.
This is helping to ensure that people who live in remote areas or those who cannot
easily access the Council's offices are able to get the advice, information and services
they need in a way which suits them.

69



This approach has been successfully extended to groups of people who may find it
difficult to engage with, or access, traditionally provided services. For example,
housing surgeries take place at a unit which delivers acute psychiatric care, and a
dedicated, multi-disciplinary adult mental health housing panel ensures that housing
needs for adults referred by wider partners and services are identified at an early
stage. Advice services in the community provided by voluntary organisations for
people with specialist needs are also well used. These services have been provided in
direct response to the needs identified in the review of the homelessness strategy, and
provide a means of early intervention and advice for people whose vulnerability
increases their risk of homelessness.

Despite an increase in homelessness applications and acceptances in 2008/09, the
Council's focus on prevention has seen a reduction in the number of households who
are homeless. It uses a range of prevention options, supported by partnership working,
funded by a dedicated prevention budget. Initiatives include its well established local,
as well as the national, mortgage rescue scheme, which between them have
prevented 18 households from becoming homeless in 2009. Other options include the
use of rent bonds and deposits to enable people to rent in the private sector; mediation
services for young people; and a sanctuary scheme and refuge provision with floating
support. This has enabled the Council to prevent increasing numbers of households
from becoming homeless, with 417 preventions in 2009/10 compared to 388 in
2008/09. This has assisted the Council in reducing the numbers of households placed
into temporary accommodation, and it has met its target to halve the use of temporary
accommodation by 2010.

As part of its approach to preventing homelessness, the Council is working well with
partners to identify and tackle rough sleeping. Through identification by the Police of a
potential increase in rough sleeping by economic migrants, the Council has, with MIRA
funding, introduced a dedicated project worker to provide emergency assistance and
regular hot spot counts with partners. Within the first six weeks of the scheme the
part-time worker attached to the housing advice service helped 13 people. The Council
also works with other partners, such as faith organisations, to run a Cold Weather
Shelter, staffed by trained workers from partner organisations. This provides an
important safety net for people who may be reluctant to engage with formal housing
and support services.

The supply of supported housing and services meets the needs of most groups of
people. Examples of current provision include three Foyer schemes for young people
provided by SHYPP, supported by dedicated move-on provision; self contained
accommodation for people with learning disabilities, supported by clinical and
therapeutic support; and self contained accommodation for ex-offenders, with referrals
from the probation services. Plans are also progressing for core and cluster schemes
for people with learning disabilities and mental ill health. Supply has increased in
response to needs identified through partners and the research base, and there is now
a wider range of appropriate supported housing options available.

70



Lettings arrangements are providing choice for applicants. Over 90 per cent of the
social housing stock is let through the county's choice based lettings (CBL) scheme.
The common allocations policy was reviewed and revised in early 2010, and now
includes a stronger focus on meeting the needs of young people leaving care, and
customers ready to move on from support services.

The quality of partnership and joint working to meet the needs of vulnerable people is
mixed. There are some positive examples of where this is working well, for example,
the Repairs on Prescription scheme with health and social care professionals; and joint
working with the Police and Fire Service in relation to provision of a Sanctuary
Scheme, and enforcing standards in the private sector. However, there are also areas
where this is not so effective, such as the provision of major adaptations, and lack of
monitoring of operational agreements which are designed to prevent homelessness,
such as debt advice and mediation services. As a result, the Council cannot be sure
that some services, designed to meet the needs of vulnerable people, are fully
effective.

The end-to-end service for grant funded major adaptations is fragmented. It is currently
split between two services, housing, and health, and neither is taking an overview of
how well the service works, or how long it takes for customers from their initial contact
or enquiry, through to the completion of the work. Having identified an overspend due
to a backlog of approvals last year, which had resulted in an average waiting time of
three years, the Council allocated additional funding to clear the waiting list, and has
approved funding for an increase in Occupational Therapy staff capacity. However, it is
not clear that these changes will be sufficient to ensure that similar problems don't
arise again. This is important given the ageing profile of the county's population, and
the projected increase in the numbers of young people with physical disabilities.

It is taking too long for grant funding applications for major adaptations to be
processed. In 2009/10, the housing service had a target of achieving this within 20
weeks of receipt, but took 29 weeks, although this is an improvement from 32 weeks in
2008/09. The service has recently implemented new initiatives to improve this, such as
increasing the level of capital allocations, and introducing standard specifications for
level access showers, which is the most frequently delivered adaptation, but the impact
is not apparent yet.

71



Appendix 1 — Performance indicators

Appendix 1 — Performance
iIndicators

2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10

Affordable dwellings completed/ 144 208 185
acquired

Total number of new homes 805 829 689 Not yet
developed (net) available
Number of private sector homes | - 833 916 874

vacant for 6 months or more

Private sector homes vacant for | - 1.0 11 1.0
6 months or more as a
percentage of the total housing
stock

Number of empty homes - 164 153 182
returned to use as a direct result
of action by the authority

Number of households - 206 256 251
accepted as priority homeless

in-year

Number of those threatened - 3.95 4.4 6.23

with homelessness for whom
advice and supported prevented
them from becoming homeless
(per 1,000)

Number of households in 93 91 79
temporary accommodation

Data sources: Herefordshire Council; Housing Strategy Statistical Appendix; West
Midlands Regional Assembly monitoring data

Herefordshire Council | 34
72



Appendix 2 — Reality checks undertaken

Appendix 2 — Reality checks
undertaken

1 When we went on-site we carried out a number of different checks, building on the
work described above, in order to get a full picture of how good the service is. These
on-site reality checks were designed to gather evidence about what it is like to use the
service and to see how well it works. Our reality checks included:

» focus groups partners;

¢ interviews with staff, Councillors, partners and key stakeholders;
e tour of the area;

o visits to affordable housing developments; and

¢ review of Council documents.

35 | Herefordshire Council
73



Appendix 3 — Positive practice

Appendix 3 — Positive practice

‘The Commission will identify and promote good practice. Every
inspection will look for examples of good practice and innovation, and
for creative ways to overcome barriers and resistance to change or
make better use of resources’. (Seeing is Believing)

Partnership working to tackle rough sleeping

1

Through identification by the Police of a potential increase in rough sleeping by
economic migrants, the Council has, with MIRA (Migrants in Rural Areas) funding,
introduced a dedicated project worker to provide emergency assistance and regular
hot spot counts with partners. Within the first six weeks of the scheme the service
helped 13 people. The Council also works with other partners, such as faith
organisations, to run a Cold Weather Shelter, staffed by trained workers from partner
organisations. This provides an important safety net for people who may be reluctant
to engage with formal housing and support services.

Engaging with parish council's and communities to reduce carbon emissions

2

The Council has challenged parish councils to encourage as many households as
possible to calculate their carbon footprint using the Council's on-line calculator. The
challenge was supported by a prize fund to enable the parish council's with the most
participants to invest in energy efficiency measures for their village hall. The on-line
calculator provides participants with advice on how to reduce carbon emissions, save
money on associated household bills such as heating, and signposts them to wider
resources for advice and assistance for affordable warmth.

Video guides to explain the Choice Based Lettings scheme to applicants who speak
languages other than English or who have a hearing impairment

3

The Council has developed and implemented video guides which explain each stage
of the Choice Based Lettings scheme, how it works, and what applicants need to do, in
the four main community languages of the area in addition to English, alongside a
video guide with the same information for people who use British Sign Language.

Herefordshire Council | 36
74



The Audit Commission

The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone.

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue
services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for money for
taxpayers, covering the £180 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services and
make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local people.

Copies of this report

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, on audio, or in
a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070.

© Audit Commission 2010

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact:

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ
Tel: 0844 798 1212 Fax: 0844 798 2945 Textphone (minicom): 0844 798 2946

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

75




76



AGENDA ITEM 9
Herefordshire
Council

MEETING: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND STRATEGIC HOUSING
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 13 DECEMBER 2010

TITLE OF REPORT: | EXECUTIVE RESPONSE TO REVIEW OF HOME
CARE IN HEREFORDSHIRE

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR: RESOURCES & DELIVERY

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Purpose

To provide an update and timetable for the Executive response to the recent Scrutiny Review of
Home Care in Herefordshire.

Recommendation
THAT:
(a) the update and timetable for receipt of the Executive’s response be noted
Key Points Summary

o The Executive is required to provide its response to a scrutiny review within two months of
receiving the review report.

o To ensure that the response to the recommendations takes account of all relevant information,

Cabinet will consider the recommendations within the context of its overall budget deliberations
and provide a report to the Committee in the new year.

Alternative Options

1 None — statutory requirement for the Executive to respond.

Reasons for Recommendations

2 To meet statutory requirements.

Introduction and Background

3 Following the Adult Social Care & Strategic Housing Scrutiny Committee’s acceptance of the

findings of the review on Home Care in Herefordshire on 24" September, the report and
recommendations were forwarded to the Executive for their consideration.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Marcia Pert, Director of Resources and Delivery. Tel: 01432 383470

$woqv3vfg.doc 22/02/10

77



Key Considerations

4 The Cabinet Member has considered the review and its recommendations in detail. However,
in light of both the Comprehensive Spending Review announcement in October, and further
announcements specifically impacting the health & social care system, it would be premature
to respond to the review recommendations without taking the implications of these
announcements into account.

5 Members will of course recognise the financial challenge facing the council, and be mindful of
the need to have all relevant information to hand when taking decisions. The report and its

recommendations will therefore be considered in this context over the coming weeks and a
comprehensive response provided in the New Year.

Community Impact
6 Not applicable at this stage.

Financial Implications

7 Not applicable at this stage.

Legal Implications

8 Not applicable at this stage.

Risk Management

9 Not applicable at this stage.

Consultees

10 None

Appendices

11 None.

Background Papers

o None identified.

78



AGENDA ITEM 10

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND STRATEGIC HOUSING
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 13 DECEMBER 2010

TITLE OF REPORT: | ADULT SOCIAL CARE PERFORMANCE
MONITORING 2010/2011

PORTFOLIO AREA: | OLDER PEOPLE AND SOCIAL CARE, ADULTS

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To provide an updated report on progress in achieving national performance indicator targets and
other local performance indicators in Adult Social Care within the Integrated Commissioning
Directorate.

Recommendations

THAT:

(@) Progress in managing performance towards achieving targets be noted
and;
(b) Areas of concern continue to be monitored

Reasons for Recommendations

1 To enable the Committee to carry out its function in relation to the Adult Social Care and
Strategic Housing Performance targets for 2009/2010 and 2010/11.

2 The report cards in appendix 1 provide a full description of progress against key national
indicators. The cards show the trend of performance compared against our ‘family’ of similar
authorities, the English average and narrative describing the actions managers are taking to
ensure improvement.

3 Key indicator outturns for the first 6 months of the 2010/11 performance year are contained
in the report together with NI132 and NI133, which although removed from the National
Indicator set are still reported on as key local indicators.

4 Herefordshire continues to perform “well” according to the annual ‘Assessment of
Performance’ report from the Care Quality Commission, published on the 25" November.
The report outlines the findings of the 2009/10 commissioner assessment process for

Further information on the subject of this report is available
from Jana Burton, Interim Director of Adult Social Services Tel: 01432 347622

79



Herefordshire Council and sets out progress on areas of good performance, areas of
improvement over the last year and areas which are priorities for improvement.

The report shows Herefordshire continues to work well with its partners in developing joint
arrangements for the management of health and social care. The Council are commended
for their initiatives to improve the quality of services and for work on the multi-agency
framework for safeguarding; however amongst areas for improvement are the further
implementation of market development, the numbers of people accessing self directed
support and the improvement of data quality within safeguarding.

Findings from the service inspection carried out by the Care Quality Commission in late
August and early September 2010 were published on the 26" November. This year the
inspection focussed on Safeguarding Adults, Older People — Choice & Control and
Leadership and the Commissioning of Resources.

Before visiting Herefordshire, the inspection team reviewed a range of key documents
supplied by the council and during their visit, the team met with people who used services
and their carers, staff and managers from the Council and representatives of other
organisations.

For both Safeguarding Adults and Improved Choice and Control for Older People the
council continued to be graded as adequate. The Commission acknowledged the hard work
and commitment shown by staff and the huge amount of work that had been carried out
over the year. The Care Quality Commission concluded that the capacity to improve in
Herefordshire was uncertain; however a robust improvement plan is being developed that
will respond to the recommendations in both the annual assessment and service inspection
reports.

Personalisation

6

A new PPF Programme Manager is now in post and working to alleviate some of the issues
that have meant our continued reporting of this programme at amber. Work on a local
‘market map’ of our provider market is being developed, which will identify sectors and gaps
and will also be used to identify the extent and amount of support planning and brokerage
services that will be required.

A slight increase in the outturn for NI130, (no. clients receiving self directed support), was
seen at the end of October 2010; currently at 5.9% this equates to 402 clients and continues
the steady increase seen over the last 18 months.

Nationally performance around NI130 remains patchy with many local authorities struggling
to meet the 30% milestone target. In Herefordshire work to address the shortfall has
included:

¢ Increasing the emphasis on offering personal budgets for new cases. This is expected
to increase the number of personal budgets by around 25 per month; an increment of
150 by March 2011.

e The creation of a short-term central review team who will focus on existing case reviews
for 3 months starting in January 2011. This is estimated will deliver additional 350-400
users with personal budgets by March 2011.

These two actions taken together, should by March 2011, increase the numbers of service

users with personal budgets to approximately 950, increasing the NI130 outturn to around
14%.

80



It is important to note however that NI130 is a ratio of the number of eligible people directing
their own care divided by the number of people that are assisted to live independently
(NI136). This relationship can mean increasing the size of the denominator (NI136 - an LAA
target); can mask progress in the roll out of personal budgets.

Maximising Independence

7

10

11

Outturns continue to exceed targets for NI136, (the number of people supported to live
independently through social care). October’s figure of 3792 demonstrates that we are
performing both above target and better than our national comparator councils.

Performance has improved slightly for NI132 (timeliness of social care assessments), in line
with the general trend over the last few months. Performance continues to stay around the
86% mark, below target but on a par nationally and a significant improvement on
assessment rates from this time last year. The higher than average number of safeguarding
referrals continues to impact on this figure and work to address this forms part of the
improvement plan in response to the Care Quality Commission’s inspection (Point 6).

At 90%, October has seen a slight percentage increase in outturn for NI133, (timeliness of
social care packages following assessment), reflecting the introduction of improved panel
process panel for allocating resources. Performance in comparison to this time last year is
significantly better. Capacity issues due to the high number of safeguarding referrals
continue to impact on this indicator.

At 22.8% performance remains good around NI135 (Carers receiving a needs assessment
or review/advice) and still exceeds our LAA target. The appointment last year of a dedicated
Carers Officer has ensured the profile of carers has increased and a new carers’ leaflet has
been distributed countywide. The increased uptake of direct payments by carers has
impacted slightly on figures this quarter, due to the extra time required to prepare cases for
the allocation panel. Long term sickness, has also meant a lower number of assessments
carried out in one particular team.

Our figures for NI142 (number of vulnerable people supported to maintain independent
living) are currently locally generated estimates, while we await confirmation of the official
outturn from the Department of Local Government and Communities. Despite a slight dip in
Quarter 1 (97.6% actual against 97.8% target), we are again ahead of target in Quarter 2
(98.2% against 97.8%).

Work continues on a business plan that will make recommendations on the supporting
people programme and the supporting people commissioning plan is also being undertaken
to guide future commissioning of supporting people services.

Safeguarding

12

The continued high profile of safeguarding through promotional work like the “Everybody’s
Business” campaign, (the impact of which was highlighted by the Care Quality Commission
in their recent service inspection), has meant numbers of referrals have remained
significant, raising capacity issues across teams.

451 referrals were received in the 3 months up to October this year, with 180 referrals
received in October alone. The introduction of a new customer service officer in the
safeguarding team from January 2011, to screen new referrals, should alleviate some of this
pressure and further information for partners on agreed levels of need is being actioned as
part of the improvement plan, currently being developed in response to the recent
inspection.

81



Efficiency

13 September shows a significant improvement in performance for NI131 (delayed transfer of
care, across the whole Health and Social Care system), and in particular for the numbers of
acute patients whose transfer was delayed.

The reasons being reported for transfer delays often relate to issues across the health and
social care system and therefore system wide solutions are required, many of which have
been put in place, including:

Daily monitoring of delays across providers

Development of a system wide bed management process

Review of assessment processes to avoid repetition of patient assessments.

Review of panels that determine a person’s eligibility for care and exploring the possibility
of joint panels.

Financial Implications

15 An Adult Social Care Budget Recovery Plan is now in place with clear milestones for the
coming year. Progress is being monitored through regular budget clinics and is reported on
through the Milestones Dashboard.

Legal Implications
None
Consultees
Not applicable

Appendices

16 Appendix 1: Progress against indicators

Appendix 2: Safeguarding referral data

Background Papers

« None identified

82



€8

NI130 (VSC17) Social care clients receiving Self Directed Support (Direct payments and Individualised Budgets)

35.0
300 " T T T T T T T T TS TS S stmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm s Definition:-
Number of adults, older people and carers receiving self directed supportin the
25.0 year to 31st March as a percentage of clients receiving community based services
and carer's specific services aged 18 or over.
20.0
%0 |
10.0
5.0
0.0
Apr May  Jun Jul Sep Nov Jan Mar
This year I |ast Year = = = Target — — — National
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
This year 5.14 5.18 5.29 5.44 5.74 5.87
Last Year 6.1 6.32 6.38 6.32 6.12 8.56 8.56 5.82 5.83 5.71 5.18
Target 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31
National 13.8 13.8 13.8 13.8 13.8 138 13.8 13.8 13.8 13.8 13.8 13.8
Number of 360 337 357 370 390 402
Clients




¥8

VSC10.1/ NI131 Rate of delayed transfers of care per 100,000 population (aged 18 and over)

70.0
600 Definition:-
' Acceptable waiting times for assessments: For new clients (aged 18+), the
50.0 percentage from where the time from first contact to completion of assessment is
’ less than or equal to four weeks
40.0
30.0
20.0 CoooooooOoCOOOOOO
10.0
0.0
Apr  May Jun Jul Aug Sep  Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
. This year N | ast Year = = = Target = = = National
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
This year n/a n/a 34.95 34.62 60.71 44.26 27.84
Last Year n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Target 18.6 18.6 18.6 18.6 18.6 18.6 18.6 18.6 18.6 18.6 18.6 18.6
National
Number of 2397 2674 2752 2857 2868 2005
Clients




g8

NI132 Timeliness of social care assessments (all adults)

120.0
100.0 Definition:-
e e e M e emmaa Acceptable waiting times for delivery of care packages following assessment: For
new clients the percentage for whom the time from completion of assessment to
80.0 provision of all services in the care package is less than or equal to 4 weeks.
60.0
40.0
20.0
0.0
Apr  May Jul Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
N | ast Year = = = Target — — — National
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
This year 87.01 85.5 86 86 86 86.38
Last Year 98.9 98.9 98 90 74.8 78.6 89.9 86 81.3 83 87.7
Target 89 89 89 90 90 20 90 90.5 90.5 91 92 92
National 82.8 82.8 82.8 82.8 82.8 82.8 82.8 82.8 82.8 82.8 82.8 82.8
Number of 644 693 712 731 706 709
Clients




98

NI133 Timeliness of social care packages following an assessment

120.0
Definition:-
100.0 The number of carers whose needs were assessed or reviewed by the council in a
year who received a specific carer’s service, or advice and information in the same
80.0 year as a percentage of people receiving a community based service in the year.
60.0 ——
40.0
20.0
0.0
Apr  May Jun Jul Aug  Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb  Mar
This year B | ast Year = = = Target — — — National
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
This year 90.3 904 92 88 89 90
Last Year 100 100 89 56.1 56.11 56.11 64.4 51 53 91 88.7
Target 89 89 89 90 90 90 90 90.5 90.5 91 92 92
National 90.5 90.5 90.5 90.5 90.5 90.5 90.5 90.5 90.5 90.5 9.5 90.5
Number of 360 337 357 370 390 402
Clients




L8

NI135 Carers receiving needs assessment or review and a specifics carer's service, or advice and information

30.0
25.0 Definition:-
’ This number of adults all ages per 100,000 population that are assisted directly
through social services assessed/care planned, funded support to live
20.0 independently, plus those supported through organisations that receive social
services grant funded services supported to live independently through social
15.0 services (all adults )
10.0
5.0
0.0
Apr May  Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov  Dec Jan Feb  Mar
I This year I |_ast Year = = = Target — — — National
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
This year 228 16.5 23 23 23 22.8
Last Year 1.9 12 12 121 14.1 125 125 11.8 17.8 17.3 2243
Target 19.5 20.5 21 21.2 214 21.6 21.8 22 222 22.4 22.6 22.9
National 26.5 26.5 26.5 26.5 26.5 26.5 26.5 26.5 26.5 26.5 26.5 26.5
Number of 4180 4213 4251 4251 4283 4276
Clients




88

NI136 People supported to live independantly through social services (all adults )

30.0
25.0 Definition:-
’ This number of adults all ages per 100,000 population that are assisted directly
through social services assessed/care planned, funded support to live
20.0 independently, plus those supported through organisations that receive social
services grant funded services supported to live independently through social
15.0 services (all adults )
10.0
5.0
0.0
Apr May  Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov  Dec Jan Feb  Mar
This year I | ast Year = = = Target — — — National
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
This year 3721 3746 3756 3774 3759 3792
Last Year 2102 2543 2500 2598 2624 2586 2825 2986 3082 3095 3736
Target 2500 2600 2800 2900 2900 3100 3100 3250 3400 3600 3800 3879
National 3208.2 3208.2 3208.2 3208.2 3208.2 3208.2 3208.2 3208.2 3208.2 3208.2 3208.2 3208.2
Number of
Clients




AGENDA ITEM 11

& Herefordshire

Council

MEETING: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND STRATEGIC HOUSING
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 13™ DECEMBER 2010

TITLE OF REPORT: | HOMES AND COMMUNITIES
PERFORMANCE OUT- TURN TO SEPTEMBER 2010
PORTFOLIO AREA: | ADULT SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH AND WELLBEING

CLASSIFICATION: Open

Wards Affected
County-wide

Purpose

To provide an updated report on the progress towards the achievement of national performance
indicator targets and other local performance indicators for Homes and Communities (formerly
Strategic Housing Services) within the Sustainable Communities Directorate and to consider the
subsequent plans to improve performance in 2010/11.

Recommendation(s)

THAT
(a) the report on Homes and Communities Services be noted,;
and;
(b) areas of concern continue to be monitored.

Key Points Summary
« Measures are in place for 2010/11 to ensure that current performance is improved to ensure
continuous improvement across the service.

. The target in respect of the number of affordable homes may be reduced as the current
pipeline of schemes suggests the target is unlikely to be achieved.

Reasons for Recommendations
« To update Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing Scrutiny Committee Members on Homes
and Communities performance

. To ensure Scrutiny Committee are kept appraised of the plans to improve performance within
the service.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Chris Jones, Performance Improvement Officer, Sustainable Communities Directorate: chris.jones@herefordshire.gov.uk
Tel 01432 261596

89



Introduction and Background

1

Homes and Communities performance is monitored against the National Indicators (NI) that
were introduced from April 2008 and a number of former Best Value performance indicators
retained as local indicators. Regular reports are sent to the Government of the West Midlands
and the Department for Communities and Local Government.

This report covers the Performance Indicator Outturns as at 30" September 2010, against
target figures for 2010/11, along with information about Direction of Travel and Status, which
are defined as:

Direction of Travel — indicates whether the current position demonstrates improvement
against the previous year’s out-turn

Status — indicates whether the current position demonstrates progress in line with the agreed
target — G = Green (exceeded target by over 10%, B = Blue (on target), A = Amber (within 5%
of the target) and R = Red (not on target)

Key Considerations

Homes and Communities (formerly Strategic Housing)

3

NI 155 - The Housing Needs and Development Team continue to work in close partnership
with key housing providers across the county and regular monitoring of the delivery plan over
the 12 month period. Up to the end of the second quarter 66 affordable homes have been
delivered which is below target. The situation continues to be closely monitored due to the
current economic situation with Registered Social Landlords and Developers reluctant to
commit to schemes and a lack of grant funding availability from the HCA resulting in some
developments being delayed into future years. The target is currently being reconsidered as it
is unlikely that the current target will be achieved

NI 156 — There continues to be pressure on the Homelessness and Housing Advice services.
The number of households in temporary accommodation reduced to 52 at the end of
September 2010 and continues to remain below the target of 82 households in Temporary
Accommodation. In recent weeks numbers have dropped below 55 which reflects well on
efforts at preventing homelessness.

Improvement in this National Indicator has been achieved through the following activities:

e Enabling direct access by other support agencies to temporary supported housing
schemes reducing numbers requiring accommodation under the Housing Act 1996.

e A more robust approach to casework and use of prevention tools such as the
Prevention Fund and Rent Deposit Scheme.

NI 187 (LAA) The baseline was agreed in 2008/09 and the annual survey has been completed
for 2009/10 following the reporting of West Midlands energy consultant, HESTIA. The team
continue to work on a number of initiatives to ensure that the target for 2010/11 can be
achieved.

LPlI 2 - Number of private sector vacant properties returned to occupation or
demolished as a result of LA Actions. The Housing Needs and Development Team have
made good progress in bringing empty homes back into use with 54 homes delivered in the
first six months of the year quarter against a target of 125, 12 of which had been empty for
more than 6 months, data for this is currently delayed and is therefore rated as red.

90



8 LPlI 6 - No. of Households who considered themselves as Homeless, for whom
casework resolved their situation (Homelessness Prevention) The number of households
assisted under the homelessness provisions of the 1996 Housing Act has increased and the
proportion of cases per 1000 households continues to remain high with an outturn of 4.3 at
the end of September 2010. This is due to the way the cases are allocated and the new
approach that has been implemented within the team to meet the needs of vulnerable people.
This target may be increased to ensure a fair measurement of the teams success.

Community Impact

9 Not Applicable

Financial Implications

10 None identified

Legal Implications

11 None identified

Risk Management

12 None identified

Consultees

13 None identified

Appendices

14 Appendix A.: Homes and Communities Key Performance Report

Background Papers

None identified

91



92



Vv Xipuaddy

loa

snjejs
Zo jo puz

(sployssnoy ,
. . . uolenyis J1oy} paAjOSal YIOMISED WOYM JO} ‘SSO|aWOoH
vy 56 cLe puesnoul SB SOA|9SWAY} PaISPISUOD OYM SPJOYSSNOH JO ‘ON 91d1
Jad) JaquinN ‘
(enne|nWINg) SUOIOY Y1 JO }INsal B se paysijowap Jo uolednado
el skl ¢s JaquinN 0] paulnjal santadold Jueoea 1030as ajeald Jo JaquinN cldl
Buneu
%16'8Z = G9< dVS %86°0C = G9< dV'S
b 15 = o6 qve 1687 = SE> avs abejusoiad Aousoe ABisua mo| yym saswoy ul Buinl syyeuaq paseq| /81 IN €0 IdHS
awooul Buialeoal aidoad o ¢,- Alanod [an4 Buipoe |
(yoysdeus) uolepowwoooe
86 eel el JaquinN Aresodway ui Buial] spjoyasnoy Jo JaquinN 9SLIN 20 1dHS
(anneinwny)
80¢ (34" JoquINN (ssoub) paiaijep sewoy o|gepioye Jo JaquinN| GG IN L0 IdHS
uinynQ 60/80 80/10 10/90 9JUal9dYy
Z19uend | L1/01 19bae 01/60 SMEIS 01/60 uiny-nQ uiny-nQ uiny-nQ ul painsea|y uoniuyaq goualajey BuisnoH
JeaA jJo pug | winpnQ spiH e Jojeaipuj
J0 pug SPJH SPJH SPJH o1bajens

93



94



AGENDA ITEM 12
Herefordshire
Council

MEETING: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND STRATEGIC HOUSING
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 13 DECEMBER 2010

TITLE OF REPORT: | SCRUTINY GROUP REVIEW OF CARERS
SERVICES ACTION PLAN UPDATE

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Purpose

To provide a further update on the agreed action plan of the recommendations and executive action
plan of the Scrutiny Committee Review of the support to Carers in Herefordshire.

Recommendation

THAT the Committee note the update and progress made on the action plan to deliver
the Recommendations and Actions.

Key Points Summary

. This is a follow-up to the presentation made to Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing
Scrutiny Committee on the 21% June 2010 of the Carers action plan and its progress against
the recommendations as approved by Cabinet on 18 March 2010.

Alternative Options

1 None.

Reasons for Recommendations

2 The Action Plan demonstrated that actions are underway or have been completed. In light of
the new Government policy on carers and their contribution towards the ‘big society’,
Herefordshire Council Integrated Commissioning will be ensuring that the role of carers will
form part of the vision for Health and Social Care services in 2011 as a priority area for
continuous improvement. The views of carers and the role of organisations such as
Herefordshire Carers Support will be paramount in ensuring that the right services are
available to meet carers needs.

Introduction and Background

3 A Scrutiny Review Group presented their report on the review of Support for carers in
Herefordshire to Scrutiny Committee on the 30 October 2009 which was approved and
submitted to cabinet. Cabinet approved twenty out of twenty-one actions on the 18 March
2010. A progress report was presented to Scrutiny on the 21 June 2010 and this report is a
further update eight months after the action plan was implemented.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Marcia Pert, Director of Resources and Delivery. Tel: 01432 383470

95



Key Considerations

4

6

The new Adult Social Care white paper ‘Capable Communities and Active Citizens’ was
published in November 2010. This places a greater emphasis on the roles of carers and
suggests that carers should have more choice and control over the social care they receive. In
addition, the Government has also published ‘Recognised, valued and supported: Next steps
for the Carers Strategy in November 2010. Both of these documents will have an impact on
the agreed actions and further recommendations will be developed as a result in the
forthcoming months.

The Comprehensive Spending Review announcement in October will result in the removal of
the Carers Grant in 2011/12 that the Council had received, adding to the current financial
pressures of the Council. The main impact will be allocating sufficient resource for the
commissioned services that previously utilised the Carers Grant. Although the services are
greatly valued, the resource allocation outcome is not possible to state at present until the
Council receives further information on its settlement later in December and budget setting
has been set.

Jana — can you add about the protocol here and the additional new activity that will take place.

Community Impact

7

Performance against this action plan will affect the provision for services for carers in
Herefordshire.

Financial Implications

8

The commissioned services that are in receipt of the Carers Grant may be at risk due to the
end of the funding stream and the financial pressures of the Council.

Legal Implications

9

Not applicable at this stage.

Risk Management

10

None identified.

Consultees

11

None

Appendices

12

Update on the action plan attached.

Background Papers

Scrutiny Report of the support to carers in Herefordshire (October 2009)

Cabinet Response to the Scrutiny Review of the Support to carers in Herefordshire and
Executive Action Plan (March 2010)

Progress Report on the Action Plan for the Scrutiny Review of the support to Carers in
Herefordshire (June 2010).

96



¢L/110c ol

psemuo} Buiob os aq 0] anuniuog |im pue Abajens
Buluoissiwwo) aJe) [BID0S pue yjeaH ayj pue
wealJis yiom aouapuadapu| Buisiwixepy sy} ulyjim
Aond e s| poddns sialed JoneamoH  saibajel)s pue
sue|d Buluoissiwwon aininy jo JuswdojaAsp ay)

Ul paJapIsSuod aq 0} spasu Hoq ay} Aq paysignd
Jaded aie) |eIo0S }NpY 10} UOISIA, MaU Ju8dal ay)
‘Alleuonippy “(Apuanbasgns sbuiaes Jaylun) axew
0] payse usa(q aAeY OYm Seale sWwos uey} ss9))
U89 Jad 9 wnwiuiw 8y} je 1dey sem juelb siaie)
ul uononpal ay} Jenamoy ‘Buipuny ul uononpal

e paoey sweals Buipun) gy |e ‘e|dwexa

104 "sialed poddns 0] nNuUIUOD dM BINSUD

0] YNSI paysaJjal ay) pue sjabpng aoinies a1gnd
uo sainssaid ay) ‘epusabe Aoljod [euoneu buibueyo
ayj Jo 1ybij ul pamalnal Buieq mou ale sue|d

JapeaT pue Jaquaw
18uIqe) 0] pajuasald Buieg mou si jeyy ueld
ssauisng e usjium aAey Buluoissiwwo) pajelbaju)
%9 AQ 1n0 alom s}abpng

‘|leAB OU 0} JuelS) paseq ealy Ul pawnsgns

sem pue juesb oyoads siale) ayy ul pajeulblio
1ey} Buipuny ayj 108304d 0} diysisuped Buisq|iop

Aswg ayIN

Buluoissiwwo) pajelbsu|

‘1oddns ajeudoidde

B9A1928J 0} 8NUUOD sJaled ainsua 0} sjesodoud
ayew pue s1ebpng uo sabueyds oiydesbowsp
0 sjoedwl 8y} Jno 18s ||IM Buluoissiwwo)

‘BuiobuQ pue yjjeaH 8y} O} spew aiam suoljejuasaiday JO J0joa1Iq 91BI00SSY pajelbaju| ‘ueld ssauisng | 1/01L0Z 4184} U]
uaym Ag uonjoy aja|dwod o3 AJiAoy aqLasag 1aumQ € uonoy
'Sl1aled 10} S82IAI8S 109)0.4d 0} suondo pue uladuod

Alawg a)IN Jo seale 1no Bumes Jaded e dnolg) Alaaleg

9 Aoljod Bulaq|apn pue yyesH s.diysiauned

(Buluorssiwwon allysplojeiaH o} asaid [im Buluoissiwwon

‘a19|dwon 0L0Z AeN /1 pajeldwo) pajelbalu| 10}08.IQ 91RIO0SSY) pajelbaju| Jo J0joalI S1eI00SSY 9y |
uaym Ag uonoy aja|dwod 03 AJIAoY aqLosag 18umQ Z uonoy
‘panoway uoloY Siy} }dedoe jou pip jouiqe)
uaymm Ag uonoy 93ajdwod 03 AJIAIdY aquIasag BumQ | uonoy

Ue|d UONJY SOJIAI9G SJ91e7) JO MIIAdY dNoi9 AURNIOS oyl

SpEea] SUooy — Ue|d UOIJ0Y SOJIAIaS SJo1e)) JO MalAay dnodo Aunniog

97



L L0 Jequisldes 0g

‘Loc

Jaquwaydag Aqg uoisinold Sy Jayjo yum buoje
awwelboid 4dd oyl Aq Ajpuaiino padojansp
Buleq wa)sAS uoIjed0||yY 82IN0SaY Siale)

‘weaJsylom ssuapuadepu| Buisiwixelp

ay) Agq usaslano aq [Im siy| 19b.e) sy yim
ssaiboud ise} oxew o) sue|d panroidde sey
pJeoq swuweiboud (4d4d) 1sd14 8jdoad Bumng

enoqI alsa]

Jabeuep Buiuue|d

"9A0(Qe PaqlIosap swisiueyoaw
ay} ybnouy} siaied yum uoleynsuod [|ny ybnoayy

o6 yum sjesodoud |eulq ‘uoddng siaie) aliyspiojolaH
AQ paysi|ge}sa swsiueyoall Jayjo o SyIoM}au
‘swinJoy Buisn Ag siaied yym paleys aq [im suondQ
‘slaie) 0} syebpnq jeuosiad Buliayo o) days sl

8y} sk ‘Syy sJaie) e Jo juswdojaaap sy} pauels sey
Buluoissiwwo) pajelbaju| Jo Jojoaliq S1eI00SSY 8y |

uaymm Ag uonoy 93a|dwod 03 AJIAloY aqLIosaq 18umQ 9 uonoy
1aquiaoaQ € 8y
uo aoe(d Bunje) Jusne sialed abie ‘sbunesw
ajeJedas ul yum }jeap aq [|im sanss| Jueoyiubig
“1eak e saw xis }19awW pue abiaw e ssnosIp
0} SWNJO} SJ8JeI ||e 10} JaqWBAON Ul Bunsaw
B p|Iay SOH Jens|smau ey 01 uohippe uj
"(ss@00.d sjoeju0d
peoy |eue) je p|ay ay) ybnouy) paiojuow siojedipul aouewlopad ayy
AjAioe puaixg Apleam-aoim) ay) pue jsnbny Jo auo s| paJs)sibal siaieo Jo Jaquinu 8y ) ‘sialed
0} dn pouad ay; Joj pebuelie sbunesw g| ale e)aqi] a1sa7 /YIWS ulley| paJalsibal Jo Jaquinu ay) asealoul 0} paubisap
8JBY "SWNJO} PUB SJUBAS JBIEeD pUe S}I}aus(q "SOH ‘40joaiIg ypm Alleolyioads sjuana pue SuOIjOB apnjoul [|Im
Se yons ‘sialed Jo} uonew.oyul [ieyap apinoid uonounfuod ul Jabeuepy syoesuo) 1L 1/010g 4o} uedylopp LModdng siale) plojolaH
L1L0Z YoJe LE yolym siaps|smau Ajapuenb buinoid ale SOH Buluoissiwwo) pajelbau] 1ey} ainsua [Im Buluoissiwwo) pajelibaju|
uaymm Ag uonoy aja|dwod o3 AJIAoy aqLasag 18umQ G uonoy
"AJIAIIOE SIU} UOISSILUWIOD O} SNUUOD
am moy pue juelb poddng sialed ayj se yons
sjuelBb uo mainay Buipuadg aaisusyaldwo) ‘slaje) Joj uoddns
ay} Jo 10edwi ay) Je Bupoo| ale Buluoissiwwo) ajeudoidde uieisns |Im joe1U0D paalbe ay) ley)
pajeibaju| "eA0ge JUSWWOD 893S ases|d ainsua |im Buluoissiwwo) pajelbalu| sy ealay)
pue g/l 10z Jo} woddns siaied Buiuoissiwwosal
"aAaIyoe enaqi alse J0 ss8o01d U} U] "L LOZ UDIEN LE
0] JInoiip Asan uonoe siyy Buew 9,9 Aq j326png uo 8)9|dwod 0} anp S| YoIym ‘SOH Ylm 10BJjuod
0102 ay} 1o sey juelb paseg ealy 0} piebas yum Buluoissiwwon JUa.LIND 8y} MalAal Japun sdaay Buluoissiluwo)
Jaquieda isiLe | uoisioap diysiauped Bulag|iopn pue yyesH ayl pajelbayu| ‘Buiuueld jo pesH pajelbaju| Jo 1008l B1BID0SSY By ]
uaymm Ag uonoy aja|dwod o3 AJiAoy aqLasag 183umQ ¢ uonoy

98



L10C YdIEeN L€

"UoI}0. PUB UOINBISPISUOD
Joj ueid pJemlio} epuabe Jisy) Ul SI SIy |

eneqr
a11S97 J/AB|SMO|D BUUOAA

Buiuue|d jo peaH

"s9]0u s juanjed 0} sJsJed uo uoljew.lojul

Buippe jo Ayjiqisea} 8y} uo JusWod o} payse aq ||IM DN dYL
"uoljBIapPISUOD 10} (9SDd - dnolg) Bulealg aie) Alewlld ay)
ybnouyy) DN 2y 03 parussald 8q UOIBPUSWIWIOIDY MBIASY

Aunniog ayj jeys 1senbail [Im Buluoissiwwon pajelbaju]

uaymm Ag uonoy 93a|dwod 03 AJIAloY aqLIosaq 183UmQ 0} uonoy
"0} palaype bBuieq pue Jeg|o ale pue

pamalral ale sassadold Bunsixa asay) jey) SWUIIUOD

wea) aJ4ed |e100s |eydsoy ay} Jo} Jabeuey ao1A18S By}

‘weassylom aled pauuejdun 1By} S90IAIBS JBPIAOIH YIM 24NSud |IM Buluoissiwwon

3y} 0} yoeq bBuiodal pue piemio} usye) pajesbalu| ‘|endsoy wouy sbieyosip pue

Buiag mou ueld uonoe suoidwey) sbuey) ybnouy} uonisuel) aAld8e dAsIyde 0} 4o} pauueld pue

SUMeH asiuaq passasse Ajjadoid ale spasu Jaled pue juaned yjoq

"Weal}SHIoM S2INSUS YOIYM ‘JJe]s aled [e1o0s pue [ejidsoy usamiaq

2led paNPayosun ayj Jopun pamalral S92INIBS $9s5920.4d UOIJBUIPIO0D By} 1IN0 S}8S S|020}0.d

Bulobup | Buleq mou ale sainpasold abieyosip [eydsoH | Jepinold DSV ‘Jebeuely ao1nA1eSg pue uswaalby abieyosiq paleaq aliysplojoioH
uaymm Ag uonoy 93a|dwod 03 AJIAoY aqLIosaq 18UumQ 6 uonoy

010c Jequiadeq L€

‘uopng euer ‘SSYQ WB)UI
mau 8y} Aq 010z Jlequieoaq Lg 8y} Aq aq
lleys 1ng pa1e|dwod ussq Jou Sey uonoe siy|

enoqI asa]

Buluoissiwwo)
palelbaju| ‘10)0811Q 9)eI00SSY

"uoljepuUBWILIOdaY ayj 0} puodsal 0} Isni] ay} BuilAul

pue uonepuswwooay panoidde ayy BuiAejal ysna|
s|eyldsoH pJojalaH 0 9AIIND8XT JaIYyD 8y} O} DM ||IM
Buluoissiwwo) pajelbalu| Jo 1008l B)1eID0SSY ay |

uaymm Ag uonoy 93ajdwod 03 AJIAIOY aquIasag BumQ g uonoy
"10} paJed

supmeH asiuag J18y} pue sialed Joj sjabpnq jeuosiad uo asijadxa

Jo Aloyisodau e se joe pue sanssi S1aled uo pes)

S92INIBS 0} 1sod 4921 ue jo uoneubisap syl 600z Ul paalbe

paje|dwo) 010z Asenuga4 palejdwo) | Jepirold DSV ‘Jebeuely ao1ni8s Buluoissiwwo) pajelbalu| Jo 1008l B)1eID0SSY ay |
uaymm Ag uonoy 9)ajdwod 03 AJIAIOY aquIasag BumQ . uonoy

99



110z Jequieldes 0g

pajs|dwon

swuwelboud jsu4 odoad
Bumng ayj Jepun pajuswajdwi Buisq mopN

"S]OBJJUOD SYEaliq 1Hoys jualind Joj paje|dwo)

eleqlT alssn
Jabeuep Buiuue|d

YIWS unep ueky ned
S]0BJJUOY JO pEaH

uoljepusWwWooal

SIY} SS8IppE OS|E [|IM 9 UOIOY "SPaau JIay) 19awW 1seq

Jey) S9IAISS I0[Ie} O] [eNpIAIPUL B} MOJ[e [Im Jey) ANjigIXal)
|e10] 8y} apiroid [Im s}ebpng [BUOSISd JO UOIONPOJIUI 8Y |

‘L L0z Jequierdag Aq uibaq ||im s}oesu0D

alnjny Jo} uoneoyoadsal 8y "Z1L0Z YoJeN LE [1un und
SJOBJJUOD 8S8Y | "SOA|9SWAY] JO) 9WI} SARY 0} SJ8JeD MO|[e O}
SBIIAIIOEB 0} 1IN0 J0J-paled ay} aye) 0} AjoAljeuls)je Jo ‘awoy ay}
ul 8|04 Buled Jivyy wolj Aeme awiy Jaied ay) Buimolie ybnoayy
‘poau |enplAlpul }Joaw 0} AJjIqixa)} apiaoid 0y paubisap ale
syealq aled a)idsal JOA0D 1BY) S]OBJUOD JUSLIND JBY) painsud
sey Buluoissiwwon pajeibaju] Jo 10}08lIQ d1BI00SSY Y |

uaym Ag

uonoy 939|dwod 03 AJIAIOY BqlLIasaq

12UMQ

¢l uondy

L10Z YoIe L€

"9l Jouued Jualed pa|gesip e asnedaq Jo
‘AlIA110E 10 gN|O [BD0] B 0} SS90k Yoe| ybnoay)
pabejueapesip s uosiad BunoA ou 1ey)
S8INSUd SIY) pue SISeq Spasu e uo papiroid
s| Jodsuel | "s)s09 Lodsued) asay) 1o} sAed
pue sabueule yoddng siaie) aiysplojoioH
‘ybiy aJe seale |einJ pue umo) BuiAno

wioJ} S1s09 Jlodsuel; pue ‘AjID pJojaiaH

Ul paseq ale saljAloe pue sgnjo Auep

(0102 4e\) pouad Buuoyuow

1SE| 8} U0 pus ay} je way} yum Jaysibau
sJaJed BUNoA Q|| pey SOH "Ssaljiwey J1ay} pue
sJa1ed BunoA 1o} uoddns apinoid 0] Usjsued)
yseo Jo 196png ybno.y} payeosoje usaq sey
luels) paseg ealy 9y} JO %0z Ajerewixoiddy

BlaqI alise

Jabeuepy Buiuue|d

*AJUN0D 8Y) PUNOJE SBNUBA 3|qelNS Je syealq
aABY 0] Way) Mojje 0] Lodsuel) paajio aJe siaied Bunok
1841 SOH ybnouyl ainsus 0] 8NUNUOI [|IM SISUOISSILUWOYD

"S9IJIAI}OR JBYJ0 pUB SqNj0 SS800. 0} ‘S8JIAIeS
uodsuely Buipnjoul ‘woddns Jo wuo} 8y} aye) siaied bunoA 1oy
s)ealq 1ey} ainsua 0} anuiuod |Im Buluoissiwwon) pajelbaju|

uaym Ag

uonoy 939|dwod 0} AJIAIROY aquIasaq

FEXTTYe)

L1 uoidoy

100



weaJ]s YIom
aouapuadapu|
Buisiwixe sy}

Aq paJoyuow

‘0102 J81UIpA 91gejieae Adoo 1xau ay) yum Aleuenb
.yono| ui buidaayy, Jansismau ay} aonpoud SOH

"%8'¢C

0] 010Z 120 pus 1e pasealoul Jajealb sey siy] Jeak
ay} ybnouyy Juswanoidwi ueosyiubis Buimojo) ‘%t 0z
10 1961e) B JSulebe 9,¢H ZZ 1O UIN)INO UB Y}IM ‘popoasdxa

usaq sey 0L-600Z 40} GE| N SJaJeo o) Joddns
salnseaw jey} Jojeoipul aouewsopuad ay} Joj 18biey ay |

‘010¢ ydiel pus 8y} je ¢61¢ 01 600¢ UdIBN LE 1e

BlaqI alIse

"SI9J0 JI S9JINIBS By}
pue SOH Jo abpamouy s,011gnd 8y} JO JOJBJIPUI UB S| YDIYM
sJajed paJa)sibal Jo Jaquinu ayj Jojuow |im Buluoissiwwo)
pajelbaju] “Sa2IAISS JuBAdal JBY}0 pue SHH Jo woddns
pue sadIAIas as101ignd 0} ‘SJUBAS pUE SUOISSBS YoBealino
pue swnJoj} s1a1ed dojaAap Jayuny pue ‘Is)e|Smau slaie)
8y} Jo uoponpoud anuiuod 0} suojoe suejd YIOM Jidy} ul

BulobuQ | ze9| wouy pasealoul Jojsibal sey s1aied Jo Jaquunu ay | Jabeuel Buiuueld apnjoul [IIM SOH ey} ainsua |Im Buljuoissiwwo) pajelbolu|
uaym Ag uonoy 93ajdwod 03 AJIAIOY aqLIasag BumoQ Gl uonoy
‘ue|d a1ed e sey MOU JaJed yoes ‘sue|d a1ed usplUM Ul Pajdd|Jal g |IM YdIYyM ‘spasu
swajgoud yjesy |eyusw yim ajdoad jo siaied 1o ,SJaJed J9awW 0} suesw d[qixal} alojdxa |Im Asy) siaied
ayle|D auuy UNM BupjJom usym jey) papuiwal a4 ||IM SI0SSaSSY
'01L-600¢ 10} }0b1E} papaadxs ydiym ‘Jojesipul supMeH asiuaq
aouewlopad siale) ay) Jo} souewlopad ainsesw Jane) aouen 'sJaJed yum sueld aJeo jo
ul Juswanoidwi ayj 0} paynguuod Ajjoalp sey spuowwlg Ajles | uonjeue|dxs pue Juswaaibe pue uoijew.olul Jo uoisiroid
pue ‘uoljewlojul pIomawel ay} 0} pajidde usaq uoluuag yeJes By} apn[oul [[ImM SIYy] “swes} aul| jJuol) Inoybnolyy
sey Ajjenb uo snooy v “papinoid a21AI8S JO Ajjenb po0jSIapun pue pawlijuodal s aa1joeld poob piepuels
ayj Buinoadwi s1 yoiym ‘siseq sNonuipuod e uo (ad 8 ai‘do ‘HIN) Bunsixa ey} sedIAI8S JOPIAOIH JO PESH 8y} UM 8INSud
9)9|dwo) | SI0SSOSSY SIBJED UYNIM SHIOM MOU J8oIQ Slale) yy | siabeuepy s8dIA1eg Jopinoid (M Buluoissiwwo) pajelbaiu] 10joaliq 8)eI00SSY 8y |
uaym Ag uonoy 93ajdwod 03 AJIAIOY aquIasag BumQ 1 uonoy
‘Hoddns pue sedIAIes 18)}9(] puUe JUSWSSaSSe syoo.g eper
O1}SI|0Y B ©AI9981 S18Jed J1ay} pue uaipjiyo Jabeuelp 'So|[IWey/uaIp|Iyo ||e
2INSUA ||IM YoIym ‘(4vD) dJomawel{ JUswsSsossy |  8)el0}oaliq SUaIp|iyd wiislu| | Joj paiiauapl 8q 0} [euoissajold peaj/iaxiom Aey paweu e
uowwo) ayj Buisn mou ale pue Bujuiel) Bunoy yum uonounfuod | sasinbal yoiym ‘(4y9) YIomawel 4 JUsWSSOSSY UoWWoD
paAIgoal aAey wea | BuisinN sualpiy) ‘paisidwo) | ul sabeuely ubisepay ao1nIeS ayj 1no Buyjjol Apuauino s| wesa ] BuisinN s,ualp|iyd ayL
syoo.g aper
"anoqe Jabeuepy
MB3IABI] 82IAI8S BY} WOl sindino ay) Jo Jed se |  8jelojoalig sualpliyDd W] "J9)Jom A8y paweu e
anoge sy | pauueld aJe Ja)JOM PaWEU B SASIYOE 0} SSINSES|\ Bunoy yum uonounfuod | aAey SalIGESIP YIM UBIP|IYD JBY} SBDIAISS JOPINOIH UM

L10Z YIIEN LE

*1 1L 0Z 10} S82IAI8S JO BUILOISSILULIOD 198YJE ||IM SIYL
"SUOIEPUSLILIODa) 8Y] UO UOIIE)NSU09 JOo poliad

e AQ pamoj|o} Jaquiada( Ul panssi aq |[Im Jodal
leul ay] "AIne pue aunr Jo) pauueld yiom pjail

pue Jap|oyaXLelS YIM ‘PaousWilLIod Sey MaIAal SIY |

ul Jebeuejy ubisepay a2IAI8S

syoo.g aper

(4rey9) dnoug
AyyesH ag, yum uonounfuoo
ul Jebeuely ubisepay ao1AI8g

ainsus [[Im Buluolssiwwod pajelBajul Jo Jojoaliq 8yl

NEERINNET

V1/10d Bunelodioour) seoialeg saljigesiq e yim
ualp|iyD Jo mainal aAisusyaldwod e ayeusapun 0} }snJ |
SUaJP|IYD 3y} UM Mlom |im Buluoissiwwo) pajesbaiu]

uaym Ag

uonoy 939|dwod 0} AJIAIROY aquIasaq

FEXTT Vo)

€] uondy

101



‘uoljoe sjoenuo) ayy Aq Bulojyuow pue yoeqpasy
Jawo)sno Joj swialsAs salinbal yoiym ‘sjoeqjuod |je 1oy

Ylws uepy
JebBeuej s1oeNUOD

ayle|D suuy

SlaJed pue slasn 82IAI8S )M Senss|
uoneslunwwod Buipnjoul spiepuels Ajlienp ||e malAsl

‘a19ldwo) | |npayoss Alenp plepuels e mou si aiay | "pajajdwon supmeH asiuaq [IM UOI}08S S]OBJUO0Y ‘S}oRIIU0D Japinoid 1o} sarejdwa)
JaAlen aouen 10BJIUOD plepuels 8y) JO suolsiAal Bulwooylio) ay) |
spuowwis Ajes

uoluuag yeles ‘gonjoeld AepAlans Ul pappaquia pue poolsiapun

S| SIY} pue sJapiroid pue sialed Yjog Yjim suoiediunwiuwod

190140 sJalen SNONUIUOD pUB JB3[O JO) PaaU 8y} JO papullal ale yels

‘swea} A}J|eoo| Ypm JaoiyQ sialen 9 S9OIAISS JapINOId a.1ed |el00S Jey} SO2IAISS J9PIAOId JO PBAH BU} YIIM 2INSud

‘gloldwon | 8yl Ag usyellspun yiom ay) Jo ued si siy] :pajsjdwon | DSV ‘lebeue|y 801AI8S (M Buruoissiwwo) pajelbaiul 10joaliq 8)elo0ssyY ay |

uaym Ag uonay 9)ajdwod 03 AJIAIOY aquIasag FETTTYe) gl uonoy
"MJOM SIU} 9)euapun 0} paJapisuod Buiaq Ajjualind ale
$90JN0Sal pue Wwealjsylom souspuadapu] BuisiwiIxe|

ayj jo 1ed swioy ABajeng siy] Abejeng sialen "JUSWIBA|OAUI JBJBD) JO SSBUDBAIJ0BYD

1102 e 9)9|dwod 0} paJinbai sdals sy Buluino padojonsp By} MalAal [|IM sJBuoISSIWIWOY ‘ABajens ay) Jo uononpold uQ
Aenuer o¢ uaaq sey ue|d e pauoddng pue panjep ‘pasiuboosy,

ABajesg siaie) jeuoneu Hoq oy Jo 1ybij uj 'L L0Z yose Agq ABsjeng Buluoissiwwod

sJaje) e Jo paalbe pue uoionpoid ay} aq [|Im sjuawabuelle

"M3IABI Sal)l|IgesIp Yim 9S8U]) JO SSOUBAI}OBYS BY} JO aINSeaW Y "JuswwoD

uaJp|Iyd 8yj Ul paAjoAUl UBaq BABY Slated 00| oA 10} SDOH ybnouy) sialeos 0y pajussald aq |im yoiym sueld

‘ABajen g Buluoissiwwo ayj 1o} ejep Aay se paje|j0d Buluoissiwwod ojul suonoe spjing pajinbal ase sabueyo

Bulaq ul pue paAlgdal usaq sey 0|0z Alenuer ul pjay epoeqi] alse | aleym pue papiroid S2IAISS JO SSBUSAIIDBLS puB oUBAS|el

90UBJ8JU0) Slale) ay) pue sbunesw dnolb poddns 8} UO SJaled Wolj Yoeqpas) SaAla0al 1l jey] 8Insud

Buiobup ‘SwiNJo} JaJed SHH wody aouabijjaiul pue uonew.IoU| Jabeuepy Buluueld 0} SOH UM A|9s0ojo yiom [[Im Buluoissiwuwon pajelibaju|

uaym Ag uonoy 93a|dwod 03 AJIAloY aqLIosaq J83UumQ .l uonoy
‘pajulid-al pue smainal Bulaq sjajea]

‘olignd 8y} Joj s}ojyes| SOH Se [|om se

"uoIjelWIolUl 10BIUOD puE S)o|jes| Jaled epeqi alse JJEls 1o} uoljew.oyul Joejuod pue Buluies) ssaualieme apiaoad

10 abuels e aney mou sdoys oju| ||V "6002 40 pus a8y} Aq pue 8j0J S}l pue DSH Jo ssaualeme Bulig 0} sdoys oju] Ypm

a)o|dwon paAalyoe sem Buiuiel) ssaualeme Jo punol 8}9|dwod y Jabeuej Buiuueld aslel| [IM SOH 1ey) ainsua |im Bujuoissiwwo) pajelbaju|

uaym Ag

uonoy 939|dwod 0} AJIAIOY aqlIasaq

12UMQO

9} uondy

102



"9 UONOY 0] SYUI| SIY] "MaiAal sseoold pue jabpng

enoqI asa]

"S9OIAIBS palo|ie} AjlenpiAlpul
pueB Mau JO UOISIA0Id JO SWId) Ul SJaie) Jo suoljejoadxs pue
sJap|oy 196png poddns 0] sassao0.d JO pawlojul 8q [[IM

LL02 |[euosiad 1o} aAlenIul Japim e Jo Jed se awuwelbold siapinold ‘siaie) oy s}ebpng |euosiad Jo uoisirnoid ay) Joj
Jaquwaydasg o¢ 18114 ajdoad Bumnd ayi Aq pajuswsjdwi Buieq si siy] Jabeuep Buluueld | paie|dwod si yIlom se jey} ainsua |im Buluueld Jo peaH ay L
uaym Ag uonoy 91a|dwod 03 AJIAnoy aqLIasaq PuUMQO LZ uonoy
"IsSnJ] s,ualpjiyo ayj ybnouyy diysieuned ayy ssoioe
paje|nalid usaqg aAey S|ie}ap pue ‘sialed BunoA 1oy
pea| paiiuapl auy st dAD ul suonesado Ayunwwod suojjesiuebio Jouped pue
- JojoalIq JuelsiIssy au) ‘Auoyen.O Auiey] - aysidwo) slopues pineq S81p0(g JueAd|al ‘YJels 0} PBIe|NJIID g [|IM S|IB}op S,Jao110
pes| paweu Jojuas a8y} payuspl 80uQ "siaied bunoA oy
‘pPole|NdIID g [|IM ajelojoaliq | Hoddns Jo ANURUOD JO BNSS| BY} PJEMIO) 8 E) 0} Jad1}J0 Ped|
S|y} @ pea ay) BulAyuapi si ajelojoauiq sajdoad BunoA S92IAI9G S,ualp|iyD paweu Jojuas e Ajjuapl 0} paysanbal aq ||Im a)elo}oallq
a)o|dwo) — suonesadQ Ajunwwo) - 10308l Jue)sISsY ay L 10 JoyoauIq (wusul) s,0/doad BunoA pue s.uaip|iy) ay} Jo Joyalig 8yl
uaym Ag uonoy 93ajdwod 03 AJIAIOY aqLIasag BumQ 0z uonoy
" Juswissassy
SJUBWISSASSE SIaled aA0QY SY SpPasN SJale), 0} JUBWSSasSY SsJate), Buiweual 0} srow
‘Buiobup | o souepodwi oy} siequisw yels o) asiseydwa 03 S)ISIA ay} uoddns 01 papaau iomawel 4 0} sebueyo ajisinbal Aue
wes) Juanbal) ayew sIe)Jom Juswssasse slale) ay | pue ylomiaded Juswssasse puswe 0} palinbais sebueyo
el auuy 10 Jua)Xa 8y} ajebiysonul Os|e ||Im s1apirnoid aie) |el1o0S
supMeH asiuaq
Jane) aouen ‘(anoge g| uoljoe yum wepuey
‘paJisap JI spuowwig Ajles Ul) JUBWISSASSE Ul POA|OAUI JJB)S YIM Sy} asiseydwd
SPaaU UMO JI8Y]} JO JUSWISSOSSE [BNPIAIPUI 0} Jybll sialed uoluuag yeses -21 0} Udye)} 8q |IIM AJunuoddo ay] juswssasse Buunp
JO wlojul pue sjuawssasse julof plodal Ajojeindoe o) 192140 sI81e) JaJed 8y} Jo spasu ay} uo snooy e sasiseydws aonoeud
puEe }oNpuod 0} paau a8y} Yiog JNoge JadiyQ SJaied wody ¥ S82IAISS JBpPINOId Bunsixe ey} sedIAI8S JOPIAOIH JO PESH 8y} UM 8INSud
‘a19|dwon Buiyaliq paAledal aAey Swes) a1ed [e1o0s AJIedo| IV | DSV ‘1ebeuepy 9oiA18S (M Buluoissiwwon pajelbaju] ‘1010211 9)eID0SSY 9y |
uaym Ag uonoy 93ajdwod 03 AJIAIOY aquIasag BumQ 61 uonoy

103



104



AGENDA ITEM 13

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND STRATEGIC

HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 13™ DECEMBER 2010

TITLE OF REPORT: WORK PROGRAMME

REPORT BY: Democratic Services Officer

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide.

Purpose

To consider the Committee’s work programme.

Recommendation

THAT subject to any comment or issues raised by the Committee the
Committee work programme be approved and reported to the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

Introduction and Background

1. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for overseeing, co-ordinating
and approving the work programme of the Committee, and is required to periodically
review the scrutiny committees work programmes to ensure that overview and
scrutiny is effective, that there is an efficient use of scrutiny resources and that
potential duplication of effort by scrutiny members is minimised.

2. The work programme, set out at Appendix 1, may be modified by the Chairman
following consultation with the Vice-Chairman and the Directors in response to
changing circumstances.

3. Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issue arise, the Chairman may consider
calling an additional meeting to consider that issue.

4. Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the
scrutiny programme they should contact the Democratic Services Officer to log the
issue so that it may be taken into consideration by the Chairman when planning
future agendas or when revising the work programme.

Background Papers

o None identified.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer, on 01432 383690

105



106



ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND STRATEGIC HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME 2010/11
PRESENTED FOR CONSIDERATION ON 13 DECEMBER 2010

24 January 2011

Items e Budget Monitoring

e Performance Monitoring

e Safeguarding Board, Adult Social Care — Improvement Programme
e Quality Care Commission Annual Performance Assessment

e Joint Scrutiny Review Of The Transition From Leaving Care To
Adult Life

21 March 2011

ltems e Budget Monitoring
e Performance Monitoring

e Action Plan Monitoring: Scrutiny Review of the Support to Carers in
Herefordshire and the Scrutiny Review of Home Care Services.

Further additions to the work programme will be made as required

107




108



	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	6 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2010/11
	Budget report -  Appendix 1 - dec 10 mtg
	Budget report - Appendix 2 dec 10 mtg
	Budget report - Appendix 3 - dec 10 mtg

	7 HEREFORDSHIRE 2010 JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT (JSNA)
	JSNA 2010_FINAL Key Points and Recommendations (V1.1)

	8 Audit Commission Inspection Report
	Strategic Housing Services  Final Report -

	9 Review of the Executive's Response to the Scrutiny Review of Home Care Services
	10 ADULT SOCIAL CARE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2010/11
	11 STRATEGIC HOUSING SERVICE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2009/10
	SHS Appendix B - Performance Analysis

	12 Action Plan Monitoring: the Scrutiny Review of the Support to Carers in Herefordshire
	Carers Services Action Plan - update Nov 2010

	13 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
	Work programme ASCSH Dec 10


